
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda: Corporate & Works Committee 
 

 

Date: Monday 16 September 2013  
 

 

Time: 6.00pm 



 

 

Outline of Meeting Protocol & Procedure: 

 The Chairperson will call the Meeting to order and ask the Committee/Staff to present apologies or late 

correspondence. 

 The Chairperson will commence the Order of Business as shown in the Index to the Agenda. 

 At the beginning of each item the Chairperson will ask whether a member(s) of the public wish to address the 

Committee. 

 If person(s) wish to address the Committee, they are allowed four (4) minutes in which to do so.  Please direct 

comments to the issues at hand. 

 If there are persons representing both sides of a matter (eg applicant/objector), the person(s) against the 

recommendation speak first. 

 At the conclusion of the allotted four (4) minutes, the speaker resumes his/her seat and takes no further part in 

the debate unless specifically called to do so by the Chairperson. 

 If there is more than one (1) person wishing to address the Committee from the same side of the debate, the 

Chairperson will request that where possible a spokesperson be nominated to represent the parties. 

 The Chairperson has the discretion whether to continue to accept speakers from the floor. 

 After considering any submissions the Committee will debate the matter (if necessary), and arrive at a 

recommendation (R items which proceed to Full Council) or a resolution (D items for which the Committee has 

delegated authority). 

 

Recommendation only to the Full Council: 

 Such matters as are specified in Section 377 of the Local Government Act and within the ambit of the 

Committee considerations. 

 The voting of money for expenditure on works, services and operations. 

 Rates, Fees and Charges. 

 Donations 

 Matters which involve broad strategic or policy initiatives within responsibilities of the Committee. 

 Matters not within the specified functions of the Committee. 

 Asset Rationalisation. 

 Corporate Operations:- 

- Statutory Reporting; 

- Adoption of Council's Community Strategic Plan, Delivery Program and Operational Plan; 

- Delegations; and 

- Policies. 

 Tenders as per Regulation requirements. 

 Leases required to be determined by Full Council by specific legislative requirements 

 Matters reserved by individual Councillors in accordance with any Council policy on "safeguards" and 

substantive changes. 

 

Delegated Authority: 

 General financial and corporate management of the Council, except those specifically excluded by statute, by 

Council direction or delegated specifically to another Committee.  

Note: This not to limit the discretions of nominated staff members exercising Delegated Authorities granted by 

the Council. 

 Statutory reviews of Council's Delivery Program and Operational Plan; 

 Finance Regulations, including:- 

- Authorisation of expenditures within budgetary provisions where not delegated; 

- Quarterly review of Budget Review Statements; 

- Quarterly and other reports on Works and Services provision; and 

- Writing off of rates, fees and charges because of non-rateability, bad debts, and impracticality of 

collection. 

 Auditing. 

 Property Management. 

 Asset Management. 

 Works and Services - Monitoring and Implementations. 

 Legal Matters and Legal Register. 

 Parks and Reserves Management. 

 Infrastructure Management, Design and Investigation. 

 To require such investigations, reports or actions as considered necessary in respect of matters contained within 

the Business Agenda (and as may be limited by specific Council resolution). 

 Confirmation of the Minutes of its Meetings. 

 Any other matter falling within the responsibility of the Corporate and Works Committee and not restricted by 

the Local Government Act or required to be a Recommendation to Full Council as listed above. 

 
Committee Membership:    7 Councillors 

Quorum:      The quorum for a Committee meeting is 4 Councillors.
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WOOLLAHRA MUNICIPAL COUNCIL 

 

Notice of Meeting 

 

 

12 September 2013  

 

 

To:    His Worship the Mayor, Councillor Andrew Petrie ex-officio 

Councillors  Katherine O‟Regan  (Chair) 

Ted Bennett 

Peter Cavanagh 

Deborah Thomas 

Elena Wise 

Susan Wynne  (Deputy Chair) 

Jeff Zulman 

 

 

 

Dear Councillors 

 

 

Corporate & Works Committee Meeting – 16 September 2013  

 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1993, I request your 

attendance at a Meeting of the Council‟s Corporate and Works Committee to be held in 

the Council Chambers, 536 New South Head Road, Double Bay, on Monday 16 

September 2013 at 6.00pm. 

 

 

 

 

Gary James 

General Manager 
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Meeting Agenda 
 
 
Item 

 
Subject 

 
Pages 

 

1 

2 
 

 

3 

Leave of Absence and Apologies 

Late Correspondence 
Note Council resolution of 27 June 2011 to read late correspondence in conjunction 

with the relevant Agenda Item 
Declarations of Interest 

 

 
 

Items to be Decided by this Committee using its Delegated Authority 

 

D1 Confirmation of Minutes of Meeting held on 2 September 2013  1 

D2 Monthly Financial Report – August 2013 – 349.G 2 

 

Items to be Submitted to the Council for Decision 

with Recommendations from this Committee 

 

R1 Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2013 – 767.G 

2012/13 

*Note Annexure Distributed Under Separate Cover 

 

14 

R2 Acceptance of Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme Funding 

Agreement - 331.G 2013/14 

41 

R3 Double Bay Business Partnership/Chamber of Commerce – Terms for 

Mid-Stream Reporting – 1222.G 

67 

R4 Elizabeth Street, Victoria Street & Underwood Street, Paddington – 

Road Infrastructure Works – Tender No. 13/08 

84 

R5 Kiaora Lands Development – 1209.G Part 3 90 
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Item No: D1 Delegated to Committee 

Subject: 
Confirmation of minutes of meeting held on 2 September 2013  

Author: Les Windle, Manager – Governance 

File No: See Council Minutes 

Reason for Report: The Minutes of the Meeting of Monday 2 September 2013 were previously 

circulated.  In accordance with the guidelines for Committees‟ operations it 

is now necessary that those Minutes be formally taken as read and 

confirmed. 

 

Recommendation: 
 

That the Minutes of the Corporate and Works Committee Meeting of 2 September 2013 be taken as 

read and confirmed. 

 

 

 

 

 

Les Windle 

Manager – Governance 
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Item No: D2 Delegated to Committee 

Subject: Monthly Financial Report - AUGUST 2013 

Author: Don Johnston, Manager Finance 

File No: 349.G 

Reason for Report: To present the monthly financial report for August 2013 

 

Recommendation: 

 
That the Committee: 

 

i. Receive and note the Monthly Financial Report – August 2013. 

 

ii. Note that Council‟s 12 months weighted average return on its direct investment portfolio of 

4.08% continues to exceed the August 2013 benchmark 90 day term deposit index of 3.45%. 

 

iii. Note that total interest earned to August 2013 of $226k falls short of the 2013/14 Budget of 

$240k by some $14k due to the lower term deposits held to August and lower rates paid on At 

Call accounts. 

 

 

Background: 

 

Clause 212 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 requires the responsible accounting 

officer (Council‟s Manager Finance) to provide the Council with a monthly report setting out details 

of all money that the Council has invested. 

 

The Monthly Financial Report for August 2013 is submitted to the Committee for consideration and 

includes the following: 

 
 Investment Transactions for the Month 

 Summary of Receipts, Payments and Bank Balance 

 Summary of Investments 

 Details of Investment Portfolio 

 Statement of Investment Policy Compliance 

 Charts: 

 Weighted Average Maturity and Weighted Average Returns 

 Weighted Average Returns v Australian 90 day Term Deposit Index 

 Actual Interest Earned v Original Budget & Revised Forecast 

 Maturity Profile Chart 

 Movements in Book Value of Investments 
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Investment Transactions for the Month 
 

Date Transaction Description Amount ($) 
31 Jul  Book Value of Investments Held 31,108,898.50 

2 Aug Purchase AMP Bank, 270 days@ 4.00% 1,000,000.00 

14 Aug Purchase St George Bank, 240 days @ 3.50% 2,000,000.00 

14 Aug Purchase Suncorp, 180 days @ 3.75% 1,000,000.00 

19 Aug Maturity National Australia Bank, 181 days @ 4.20% (1,000,000.00) 

19 Aug Maturity Bank of Sydney, 90 days @ 4.60% (250,000.00) 

19 Aug Purchase Bank of Sydney, 92 days @ 4.05% 250,000.00 

19 Aug Purchase National Australia Bank, 270 days @ 3.86% 2,000,000.00 

28 Aug Purchase Bankwest, 243 days @ 3.40% 2,000,000.00 

28 Aug Purchase National Australia Bank, 153 days @ 3.80% 1,000,000.00 

Various Net Movement Net Movement in Online Savings Cash Account (781,027.35) 

Various Net Movement Net Movement in UBS Cash Management Trust Account 

(Coupon payments + UBS interest + Deposits– UBS Fees) 

(205.51) 

  Net Change in Portfolio 7,218,767.14 

31 Aug  Book Value of Investments Held 38,327,665.64 

 

Commentary: 

 

The two term deposit maturities during the month with the Bank of Sydney and the National 

Australia Bank were rolled over for an additional term.  An additional $8,000,000 in new deposits 

were placed arising from the first Rates instalment at the end of August.  As a result of the 

placement of these new term deposits, the investment portfolio increased $7,218,767.14 during 

August. 

 

Investments Working Party Update 

 

In relation to the Lehman Brothers class action, Council has received no further information from 

the liquidators, PPB Advisory, or IMF. 

 

In relation to the Oakvale matter, as a result of Oakvale being placed in administration, Council‟s 

proceedings have been stayed.  The most recent update from Piper Alderman indicated that a 

proposed Deed of Company Arrangement (DOCA) was to be considered at a second meeting of 

creditors originally scheduled for 27 August 2013.  Piper Alderman drew a number of inaccuracies 

in the report to creditors to the attention of the administrator and sought an adjournment of the 

meeting.  A resolution was passed that the second meeting of creditors be adjourned for a period of 

up to 28 days which will allow a draft of the DOCA to be prepared and provided to Piper Alderman. 

 

While it was not raised at the meeting of creditors, the mediation with Oakvale‟s insurers and the 

administrators remains a possibility. 

 

Further updates in relation to both matters will be provided as they come to hand. 
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Commentary: 

This statement presents Council‟s bank reconciliation as at 31 August 2013.  The top ten receipt and 

payment items are provided in the report.  Excluding investment transactions, receipts exceeded payments 

for the mon 

th by some $7.8m due to the first Rates instalment in August. 

Summary of Receipts, Payments and Bank Balance

Cash Book Balance as at 31 July 2013 -224,821.00

Receipts

Rates 12,820,567.41

Investment Maturities 1,250,000.00

Transfers In from At Call Accounts 7,641,000.00

Other 1,706,782.56

Total Receipts 23,418,349.97

Description Amount

Sundry Debtors 780,875.03

Parking Fines 454,706.79

Deposits & Bonds 338,770.00

Capital Grants - various 264,152.00

Trade Waste Debtors 176,860.06

Parking Meter Charges 138,629.27

Sect 94A Contributions 137,794.43

Development Application Fees 46,029.20

GST Refund 38,006.63

Build/Construction LS Levy 33,883.38

Payments - Cheque

Cheque Payments -667,909.69

Cancelled Cheques 22,753.06

Total Cheque Payments for period -645,156.63

Cheque No Cheque Date Payee Description Amount

217555 16/08/2013 Keystone Project Group Pty Ltd Gen w orks - Woollahra Seniors Centre -41,602.37

217605 16/08/2013 Withheld Refund of security deposit -25,940.19

217679 29/08/2013 AGL Sydney Electricity supply - Jul'13 - various locations -20,049.86

217486 2/08/2013 Withheld Refund of security deposit -17,779.21

217675 27/08/2013 Withheld Refund of security deposit -17,530.66

217576 16/08/2013 Custom Carpets (NSW) PTY LTD Carpet replacement - Council Chambers -16,976.30

217431 1/08/2013 Brick N Pave Gen w orks - William Street -16,095.75

217689 29/08/2013 Office of State Revenue Quarterly instalment - Parking Space Levy - Grafton St -13,845.00

217497 6/08/2013 Withheld Refund of security deposit -13,190.86

217670 23/08/2013 Withheld Refund of security deposit -12,624.73

Payments - EFT

EFT Payments -3,808,707.83

Returned EFTs 0.00

Total EFT Payments for period -3,808,707.83

Reference EFT Date Payee Description Amount

41294 1/08/2013 Ministry for Police & Emergency Services Statutory contribution-Fire & Rescue NSW/SES 1st qtr -638,566.74

41556 22/08/2013 Local Govt Super Scheme-Div.A Employer/employee super - Jul'13 -262,304.45

41658 29/08/2013 SITA Australia Pty Ltd Waste tipping fees  17-31/7/13 -184,445.67

41384 8/08/2013 Statew ide Civil Pty Ltd Gen w orks - Guilfoyle & Ocean Sts, Double Bay -164,816.44

41501 16/08/2013 SITA Australia Pty Ltd Waste tipping fees  1-16/7/13 -155,560.82

41364 8/08/2013 Local Govt Super Scheme-Div.B Employer/employee super - Jul'13 -138,960.32

41663 29/08/2013 Statew ide Civil Pty Ltd Gen w orks - Guilfoyle & Ocean Sts, Double Bay -120,820.25                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

41458 16/08/2013 Hew lett Packard Australia Pty Ltd Electronic document management softw are -98,175.28

41353 8/08/2013 Gilbert + Tobin Law yers Legal costs - carparking agreement and Kiaora Lands -83,010.05

41368 8/08/2013 Momentum Energy Street lighting - Jun'13 -67,409.03

Payments - Direct Debits From Bank A/c

Payroll -1,629,426.55

PAYG Tax -508,728.74

Bank Charges -16,872.55

Investment Purchases -9,250,000.00

Transfers to At Call Accounts -6,855,000.00

Credit Cards -6,370.17

Councillors' fees -24,638.53

Council Rates -56,891.97

Total Direct Debits for period -18,347,928.51

Total Payments -22,801,792.97

Cash Book Balance as at 31 August 2013 391,736.00

Unpresented Cheques No of Cheques: 160 Value: 203,004.00

Outstanding Deposits & Miscellaneous Items 1,424,403.18

Reconciled Cash Book Balance as at 31 August 2013 3,527,945.90

Bank A/c Balance as at 31 August 2013 3,527,945.90

Unpresented Cheques > $30,000.00

Cheque No. Cheque Date Payee Amount

Not any
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INVESTMENTS AS AT 31 AUGUST 2013 31/08/2013

CATEGORY

 FACE

VALUE

$ 

 BOOK VALUE

$ 

1. LEHMAN BROTHERS (formerly Grange Securities Ltd)

Funds previously under management 544,844              44,844                    

2. OAKVALE CAPITAL Limited

Funds previously under management 2,183,088           1,543,954               

RATING CATEGORY

PURCHASE 

DATE

MATURITY 

DATE

TOTAL 

TERM 

(DAYS)

REMAINING 

DAYS TO 

MATURITY  % 

 FACE

VALUE

$ 

 BOOK VALUE

$ 

 GOV'T 

GUARANTEE 

3. WMC DIRECT INVESTMENTS

TERM  DEPOSITS:    (in order of M aturity)

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 4/06/2013 3/09/2013 91 3 4.05 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

RABO DIRECT

TERM DEPOSIT 5/06/2013 3/09/2013 90 3 4.05 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

HUNTER UNITED CU

TERM DEPOSIT 25/03/2013 23/09/2013 182 23 4.10 250,000              250,000                  Guaranteed

ING DIRECT

TERM DEPOSIT 4/02/2013 2/10/2013 240 32 4.47 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 7/06/2013 4/10/2013 119 34 4.04 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

BENDIGO/ADELAIDE BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 11/02/2013 9/10/2013 240 39 4.30 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

ING DIRECT

TERM DEPOSIT 22/04/2013 21/10/2013 182 51 4.36 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

ING DIRECT

TERM DEPOSIT 28/02/2013 28/10/2013 242 58 4.28 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

ING DIRECT

TERM DEPOSIT 28/02/2013 28/10/2013 242 58 4.30 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

BENDIGO/ADELAIDE BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 6/05/2013 4/11/2013 182 65 4.30 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

SUNCORP

TERM DEPOSIT 21/05/2013 18/11/2013 181 79 4.10 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 19/11/2012 19/11/2013 365 80 4.69 2,000,000           2,000,000               #

BANK OF SYDNEY

TERM DEPOSIT 19/08/2013 19/11/2013 92 80 4.05 250,000              250,000                  Guaranteed

COM M ONWEALTH BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 27/05/2013 25/11/2013 182 86 4.05 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

ST GEORGE

TERM DEPOSIT 3/12/2012 3/12/2013 365 94 4.28 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

RABO DIRECT

TERM DEPOSIT 29/04/2013 2/01/2014 248 124 4.35 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 28/08/2013 28/01/2014 153 150 3.80 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

ING DIRECT

TERM DEPOSIT 31/07/2013 29/01/2014 182 151 4.36 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

SUNCORP

TERM DEPOSIT 14/08/2013 10/02/2014 180 163 3.75 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

AM P BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 14/05/2013 14/02/2014 276 167 4.00 2,000,000           2,000,000               #

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 4/03/2013 4/03/2014 365 185 4.25 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

AM P

TERM DEPOSIT 3/04/2013 3/04/2014 365 215 4.15 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

ST GEORGE

TERM DEPOSIT 3/04/2013 3/04/2014 365 215 4.20 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

ST GEORGE

TERM DEPOSIT 14/08/2013 11/04/2014 240 223 3.50 2,000,000           2,000,000               #

BANKWEST

TERM DEPOSIT 28/08/2013 28/04/2014 243 240 3.40 2,000,000           2,000,000               #

AM P

TERM DEPOSIT 2/08/2013 29/04/2014 270 241 4.00 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 19/08/2013 16/05/2014 270 258 3.86 2,000,000           2,000,000               #

COM M ONWEALTH BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 27/05/2013 27/05/2014 365 269 4.05 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

AM P BANK

TERM DEPOSIT 20/06/2013 20/06/2014 365 293 4.00 1,000,000           1,000,000               #

CBA

FLOATING RATE NOTE** 5/03/2012 24/12/2015 1389 845 4.09 1,000,000           983,100                  #
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RATING CATEGORY

PURCHASE 

DATE

MATURITY 

DATE

TOTAL 

TERM 

(DAYS)

REMAINING 

DAYS TO 

MATURITY  % 

 FACE

VALUE

$ 

 BOOK VALUE

$ 

 GOV'T 

GUARANTEE 

AT CALL:

COM M ONWEALTH BANK

ONLINE SAVER A/C 2.75 3,205,768           3,205,768               #

ANZ BANK

11AM CALL ACCT 2.75 50,000                50,000                    #

Total WMC Direct Investments 36,755,768 36,738,868

Weighted Average Days to Maturity of WMC Direct Investments 161.63

Weighted Average Return of WMC Direct Investments 4.08

PORTFOLIO TOTALS 39,483,700         38,327,666             

#  Covered under Council's new  Investment Policy effective Tue 31/01/12

* Government Guaranteed deposits have been rated AAA

** BBSW + 1.05%p.a.

I hereby certify that the above investments have been made in accordance w ith Section 625 of the Local Government Act 1993,

Clause 212 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 and Council's investment policy.

D. Johnston

MANAGER FINANCE
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INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO AS AT 31 AUGUST 2013

Security
Policy 

Ref
Classification

Purchase 

Date

Final 

Maturity 

Date

Face Value

(FV)

Total Purchase 

Price
Current Book Value Notes

1.    LEHMAN BROTHERS (formerly GRANGE SECURITIES)

Issued by non-ADIs
Corsair (Kakadu AA) CDO 22/01/2007 20/03/2014 500,000 503,300 0 1

500,000 503,300 0

UBS Cash Management Trust Cash 44,844 44,844 44,844 5

44,844 44,844 44,844

Total Lehman Brothers 544,844                   548,144                   44,844                            

2.    OAKVALE CAPITAL
Emeral Reverse Mortgage Series 2007-1 Class B Mortgage Backed 6/07/2007 6/07/2057 1,000,000 1,000,000 580,500 1

Blackrock (Merrill Lynch) Diversified Credit Fund Managed Fund 5/01/2007 1,183,088 1,183,088 963,454 4

Total Oakvale Capital 2,183,088 2,183,088 1,543,954                       

3.   WMC INVESTMENTS
National Bank (4.05% 91d) A1 TD 4/06/2013 3/09/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

National Bank (4.04% 119d) A1 TD 7/06/2013 4/10/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

National Bank (4.69% 365d) A1 TD 19/11/2012 19/11/2013 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 5

National Bank (3.80% 153d) A1 TD 28/08/2013 28/01/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

National Bank (4.25% 365d) A1 TD 4/03/2013 4/03/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

National Bank (3.86% 270d) A1 TD 19/08/2013 16/05/2014 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 5

Bankwest (3.40% 243d) A1 TD 28/08/2013 28/04/2014 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 5

St George - div of Westpac (4.28% 365d) A1 TD 3/12/2012 3/12/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

St George - div of Westpac (4.20% 365d) A1 TD 3/04/2013 3/04/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

St George - div of Westpac (3.50% 240d) A1 TD 14/08/2013 11/04/2014 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 5

Commonwealth Bank (4.05% 182d) A1 TD 27/05/2013 25/11/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

Commonwealth Bank (4.05% 182d) A1 TD 27/05/2013 27/05/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

Commonwealth Bank (BBSW + 1.05% 3 yrs) A1 FRN 5/03/2012 24/12/2015 1,000,000 976,400 983,100 2

Sub-total Tier 1 Deposits 17,000,000 16,976,400 16,983,100

ING Direct (4.47% 240d) A2 TD 4/02/2013 2/10/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

ING Direct (4.36% 182d) A2 TD 22/04/2013 21/10/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

ING Direct (4.30% 242d) A2 TD 28/02/2013 28/10/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

ING Direct (4.28% 242d) A2 TD 28/02/2013 28/10/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

ING Direct (4.36% 182d) A2 TD 31/07/2013 29/01/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

AMP (4.00% 276d) A2 TD 14/05/2013 14/02/2014 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 5

AMP (4.15% 365d) A2 TD 3/04/2013 3/04/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

AMP (4.00% 270d) A2 TD 2/08/2013 29/04/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

AMP (4.00% 365d) A2 TD 20/06/2013 20/06/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

Sub-total Tier 2 Deposits 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

Bendigo/Adelaide (4.30% 240d) A3 TD 11/02/2013 9/10/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

Bendigo/Adelaide (4.30% 182d) A3 TD 6/05/2013 4/11/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

Suncorp (4.10% 181d) A3 TD 21/05/2013 18/11/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

Suncorp (3.75% 180d) A3 TD 14/08/2013 10/02/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

RaboDirect (4.05% 90d) A3 TD 5/06/2013 3/09/2013 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

RaboDirect (4.35% 248d) A3 TD 29/04/2013 2/01/2014 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5

Sub-total Tier 3 Deposits 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000

Hunter United CU (4.10% 182d) B TD 25/03/2013 23/09/2013 250,000 250,000 250,000 5

Bank of Sydney (4.05% 92d) B TD 19/08/2013 19/11/2013 250,000 250,000 250,000 5

Sub-total Govt Guaranteed Deposits 500,000 500,000 500,000

ANZ Bank 11am Call Account A1 Cash 50,000 50,000 50,000                     5

CBA Online Saver A1 Cash 3,205,768 3,205,768 3,205,768                 5

Total Direct Investments 36,755,768 36,732,168 36,738,868                    

Total Portfolio 39,483,700 39,463,400 38,327,666                    
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Security
Face Value

(FV)

Total Purchase 

Price
Current Book Value

PORTFOLIO SUMMARISED BY CLASSIFICATION
CDO 500,000 503,300 0

FRN 1,000,000 976,400 983,100

Mortgage Backed 1,000,000 1,000,000 580,500

Managed Fund 1,183,088 1,183,088 963,454

TD 32,500,000 32,500,000 32,500,000

Cash 3,300,611 3,300,611 3,300,611

Other 0 0 0

39,483,700 39,463,400 38,327,666                    

1.  Book Value (Fair Value) as at 30 June 2012

2. Mark-to-Market Valuation 31 December 2012

3.  Defaulted

4.  Current Value.  Fund Closed - Assets being sold and repaid

5.  Face value of deposit / bank bill

CDO - Collateralised Debt Obligation

FRN - Floating Rate Note

Managed Fund

Mortgage Backed Security

Term Deposit Term Deposit is a money deposit at an approved deposit taking (ADI) institution for a fixed term at a fixed interest rate. 

When the term is over it can be withdrawn or it can be held for another term.

CDOs are constructed from a portfolio of assets. These assets are divided by the issuer into different tranches: senior 

tranches (rated AAA), mezzanine tranches (AA to BB), and equity tranches (unrated). Losses are applied in reverse 

order of seniority and so junior tranches offer higher coupons (interest rates) to compensate for the added default risk.

Floating rate notes (FRNs) are bonds that have a variable coupon, equal to a money market reference rate, plus a 

spread. The spread is a rate that remains constant. Almost all FRNs have quarterly coupons, i.e. they pay out interest 

every three months.

Managed Funds are a way of investing money with other people to participate in a wider range of investments than 

those feasible for most individual investors, and to share the costs of doing so.

A mortgage-backed security is an asset-backed security whose cash flows are backed by the principal and interest 

payments of a set of mortgage loans. Payments are typically made monthly over the lifetime of the underlying loans.
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Commentary: 

 

The weighted average days to maturity remained almost unchanged with new investments offsetting 

the otherwise downward trendline towards maturity. 

 

  
 

Commentary: 

 

The weighted average fell slightly during the month with new investments attracting lower rates. 
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Commentary: 

 

This chart tracks Council‟s weighted average return on its direct investment portfolio against a 90 

day term deposit index.  The Council‟s average return fell 15 margin points during the month to 

4.08% against a TD Index of 3.45%.  This was mostly due to new investments attracting lower 

returns. 

 

  
 

Commentary: 

 

The Actual v. Budget chart includes the Original Budget and Actuals.  There are no forecast figures 

at this early part of the year with the first revised forecast due in September.  Total interest of $226k 

earned to August is $14k below the Budget for the same period.  The shortfall is largely due to the 

lower level of term deposits held to the end of August with At Call accounts attracting a lower rate 

of interest.  With the current quarterly rates revenue placed in new term deposits, interest income 

should now pick up although tempered by lower rates. 
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Maturity Range $M Invested % of Portfolio 

< 90 days 16.76 45.6 

90 - 180 days 7.00 19.1 

181 - 270 days 11.00 29.9 

270 - 365 days 1.00 2.7 

1 - 2 years 0.00 0.0 

2 - 3 years 0.98 2.7 

3 -5 years 0.00 0.0 

 36.74 100.0 

 

 

Commentary: 

 

The chart and table reflect Council‟s position of generally rolling short term investments. 

  

< 90 days, $16.76m, 45.6%

90-180 days, $7.00m,         
19.1%

181 - 270 days, $11.00m, 
29.9%

270 - 365 days, $1.00m, 
2.7%

1 - 2 YEARS, 0.00, 0%

2 - 3 YEARS,$ 0.98m, 2.7.% 3 -5 YEARS, 0.00, 0%

Direct Investment Maturities
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Movements in Book Value of Investments 

 

 
 
Commentary: 

The table above details any movements in Council‟s portfolio formerly managed by Lehman 

Brothers and Oakvale Capital along with Council‟s direct investment floating rate note.  It typically 

includes the maturity or sale of securities, quarterly coupon payments and fair value (market) 

adjustments.  It will also include small payments of interest earned on Council‟s cash management 

accounts and the deduction of fees associated with Council‟s safe custody arrangements. 

 

There were no coupon payments due for August. 

 

 

 

Don Johnston 

Manager - Finance 

 

Stephen Dunshea 

Director Corporate Services 

 

 

Annexures: 

 

Nil. 

  

Formerly managed by Lehman Brothers

Date Description Securities

UBS Cash 

Management 

Trust

Total

Book Value

30/06/2013 Balance brought forward 1,380,695.00 30,331.63 1,411,026.63

18/07/2013 UBS Fee - Jun  '13 management fee (206.74) 1,410,819.89

19/07/2013 Royal Bank of Scotland FRN sale (852,500.00) 558,319.89

19/07/2013 FV Adjustment (BV @ $890,210) (37,710.00) 520,609.89

19/07/2013 Royal Bank of Scotland FRN sale (490,000.00) 30,609.89

19/07/2013 FV Adjustment (BV @ $490,485) (485.00) 30,124.89

15/07/2013 CBA FRN - quarterly interest 10,200.00 40,324.89

31/07/2013 July coupons 4,724.52 45,049.41

7/08/2013 UBS Fee - Jul  '13 management fee (205.51) 44,843.90

0.00 44,843.90

Formerly managed by Oakvale Capital

Securities

Blackrock 

Managed Fund

Total

Book Value

30/06/2013 Balance brought forward 580,500.00 963,454.16 1,543,954.16

580,500.00 963,454.16

Direct Investments

Securities

Total

Book Value

30/06/2013 Balance brought forward 983,100.00 983,100.00

983,100.00
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Item No: R1 Recommendation to Council 

Subject: Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 

Author: Don Johnston, Manager Finance 

File No: 767.G 2012/13 

Reason for Report: To present the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 to the 

Committee, provide commentary on the budget result for 2012/13 and 

recommend to Council the adoption of Council's statement in respect of the 

Financial Statements 

 

Recommendation: 
 

A. That Council note the budget result achieved for 2012/13 is a deficit of $47k, representing a 

reduction of $94k on the March 2013 budget review forecast, resulting in a working funds 

balance of $2,568k at 30 June 2013. 

 

B. That Council, having noted the statement of confirmation provided in the report by the 

General Manager, the Director Corporate Services and the Manager Finance (Responsible 

Accounting Officer), adopt the following statement in relation to its Financial Statements for 

the year ended 30 June 2013: 

 

That, in relation to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013, Council is of 

the opinion that: 

 

The Financial Statements have been drawn up in accordance with: 

i. the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and Regulations made thereunder; 

ii. the Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements; and 

iii. the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 

 

and to the best of our knowledge and belief the Report: 

 

presents fairly Council’s financial position and operating result for the year; and 

 

accord with Council’s accounting and other records; 

 

and further, the signatories to the Report, to the best of our knowledge and belief, know of 

nothing that would make the render the report false or misleading in any way; 

 

C. That Council formally refer the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 for 

audit; and 

 

D. In anticipation of receiving the Auditor‟s Reports, set the Corporate & Works Committee 

meeting to be held on Monday 21 October 2013 as the meeting at which the 2012/13 

Financial Statements will be presented to the public. 

 

 

Introduction: 
 

Each year, all local government Councils in NSW are required to prepare a set of financial 

statements.  The form and content of the statements is set down in the Local Government Code of 

Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting (the Code) updated and re-issued by the Division of 

Local Government (DLG) each year.  The financial statements must comply with the Code, the 

Local Government Act and its Regulations and the Australian Accounting Standards. 
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The financial statements set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of 

Council at each year ending 30 June, supported by detailed notes to the financial statements.  The 

statements must be certified by senior staff as „presenting fairly‟ the Council‟s financial results for 

the year and are required to be adopted by Council. 

 

The five primary financial statements are: 

 

Income Statement 

 

The Income Statement presents a summary of Council‟s financial performance for the year showing 

all income and operational expenses.  The statement also includes both the Council‟s original 

adopted budget for the year and prior year figures.  This enables comparisons between what was 

forecast and what actually happened and also how things have changed from the previous year.   

 

It is important to note that only operational expenditure is included in the Income Statement and 

consequently recorded in the Net Operating Result for the year.  Capital expenditure, that is 

expenditure incurred for the acquisition and construction of assets, or other capital purposes such as 

transfers to reserves, is not included in the Income Statement.   Capital expenditure is recorded as 

movements in the value of assets in the balance sheet.   Details of movements in the value of assets 

and reserves are provided in Note 9 and Note 6 to the Financial Statements respectively. 

 

References to the detailed notes to the financial statements are also provided. 

 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income presents a broader view of Council‟s total income 

through the inclusion of sources of income that are not included in the Income Statement, such as 

movements in equity resulting from the revaluation of assets. Details of these changes are provided 

in the notes to the statements. 

 

Balance Sheet 

 

The Balance Sheet provides a snapshot of Council‟s financial position at the end of each year listing 

its assets and liabilities.  Again references are provided to the detailed notes. 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

 

The Statement of Changes in Equity records the movement in total equity for the year across 

contributing components, including the net operating result for the year and any movements to/from 

the asset revaluation reserve. 

 

Statement of Cash Flows 

 

The Statement of Cash Flows records where Council‟s cash came from and how it was spent.  

Similar to the Income Statement, this statement also includes both the Council‟s originally adopted 

budget and prior year figures to provide comparisons between what was forecast and what actually 

happened and also how things have changed from the previous year.  A reconciliation of cash and 

cash flows is provided in the notes to the statements. 

 

The financial statements are required to be audited by external auditors that are appointed through a 

tender process for a period of six years.  Council‟s appointed external auditors, Hill Rogers Spencer 

Steer provide two audit reports: 
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1. An opinion on whether the financial statements „present fairly‟ Council‟s financial position 

and performance; and 

2. Their observations on the conduct of the audit including Council‟s financial position and 

performance. 

 

The financial statements are a publically available document and are formally presented to the 

public following receipt of the Auditor‟s Reports.  Like many other Council documents, the 

financial statements are publically exhibited each year and submissions from the public invited.  

Any submissions received are reported to the Corporate & Works Committee with responses from 

staff.  They are also sent to Council‟s auditor. 

 

Council is required to send its audited financial statements to the DLG by 7 November each year.  

A copy is also sent to the Australian Bureau of Statistics and Council‟s bank, the Commonwealth 

Bank. 

 

Supplementing the financial statements are a number of Special Schedules which include additional 

information on Council‟s income and expenditure, loans and condition of public works (building 

and infrastructure assets).  These schedules are not required to be audited, although their agreement 

with the financial statements is confirmed. 

 

This report presents the financial statements to the Corporate & Works Committee and seeks a 

recommendation to Council to adopt the required statement in relation to them.  Out of necessity it 

is a quite lengthy and complex report.  The report provides: 

 

 An Executive Summary presenting a high level summary of Council‟s financial position and 

performance; 

 A certification from senior staff in relation to the financial statements; 

 A detailed review of the budget result for the year using key indicators reported on over the 

course of the year in quarterly budget reviews; 

 A detailed review of the changes from the previous financial year; 

 Details of Council‟s restricted cash reserves; and 

 An overview of the performance of Council‟s investment portfolio. 

 

Council staff will provide a presentation to the Corporate & Works Committee in relation to this 

report. 

 

Executive Summary: 

 

The Financial Statements for year ended 30 June 2013 year have been prepared and informally 

referred for audit.  The Statements have also been reviewed by the Audit & Assurance Committee.  

While the audit and assurance process in relation to the Financial Statements attached to this report 

has been completed, Council needs to adopt its statement of certification in relation to the financial 

statements and formally refer them for audit prior to the provision of the auditor‟s reports. 

 

A copy of the General Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 is provided as 

ANNEXURE 1 circulated separately. 
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The statements disclose: 

 

Income Statement 

 Total income of $76,578k and total expenses of $73,661k giving an operating surplus for the 

year of $2,917k compared to the prior year surplus of $888k.  It should be noted that the 

2012/13 result includes a $1,364k increase in fair value adjustments to investments and an 

$850k increase in valuation of Council‟s investment properties arising from a revaluation by 

Council‟s valuer. 

 A net operating deficit before capital grants and contributions for 2012/13 of ($1,439k) 

compared to the prior year deficit of ($2,732k). 

 

Balance Sheet 

 Net current assets of $13,550k, falling from $13,836k in 2011/12 

 Net total assets having increased to $655,518k from $610,015k including a $42,586k 

revaluation of community and operational land. 

 

Statement of Cash Flows 

 Net cash provided by operating activities increasing slightly from $11,689k to $11,712k 

 Purchase of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment increasing from $12,033k to 

$15,562k due mainly to the completion of projects carried over for 2011/12 including Lyne 

Park Seawall ($743k), Hargrave Street ($492k), Lyne Park ($422k) and other infrastructure 

renewal projects ($947k). 

 Principal repaid on loans of $944k. 

 

Performance Measurement Indicators (Note 13) 

 Council‟s unrestricted current ratio improving from 2.54:1 to 2.74:1 reflecting a reduction in 

externally restricted cash reserves arising from the higher capital expenditure above. 

 Council‟s debt service ratio decreasing from 2.09% from 1.96%.  Whilst the ratio remains 

low, the decrease reflects the same level of loan repayments in 2012/13 as 2011/12 but 

relating to a higher revenue base. 

 The Rates and Annual Charges Coverage ratio decreasing to 57.93% of Council‟s revenue 

from 58.94%, reflecting an increase in other income sources, particularly the fair value 

adjustments to investments (up $1,364k from 2011/12) and Investment Properties ($850k). 

 An improvement in the Outstanding Rates ratio from 4.97% to 4.65%, noting that this 

remains at the upper level of the up to 5% benchmark range for metropolitan councils.  

 The Building & Infrastructure renewals ratio improving from 56.63% to 73.48%.  This is 

comprised of an Infrastructure Renewal ratio of 100.73% and a Building Renewal ratio of 

5.04% which continues to reflect an under investment in asset renewal in this area.  This 

matter has been previously acknowledged by Council and will be addressed in the review of 

its long term financial plan. 

 

For the first time in 2012/13, Note 13 also includes a number of additional financial indicators 

published by NSW Treasury Corporation (TCorp) in its recent review into the financial 

sustainability of NSW Councils.  The DLG has included these additional indicators in the Code of 

Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting in addition to the local government indicators above.  

A review of these new indicators, including a comparison to TCorp‟s benchmarks, is provided later 

in the report. 

 

As a result of the year‟s operations, there has been a small reduction in Council‟s working funds 

position from $2,615k to $2,568k reflective of a $47k deficit budget result for the year.  

Notwithstanding the decrease to $2,568k, the working funds result is still some $176k more than the 

$2,392k benchmark (Arrears of Rates plus Inventory). 

 



Woollahra Municipal Council 

Corporate & Works Committee  16 September 2013  

 

 

H:\Corporate & Works Committee\AGENDAS\2013\sept16-13c&wage.docx                                                                   

The final budget result of a $47k deficit was $94k less than forecast at the March 2013 quarterly 

budget review when working funds was forecast to be $2,662k at 30 June 2013.  Full details of the 

financial result for the 2012/13 are provided later in the report which, combined with the 

performance indicators referred to above, demonstrate that Council‟s overall financial position 

remains satisfactory. 

 

Statement by Council in respect of the financial statements: 
 

The general purpose financial statements must be prepared in accordance with the Local 

Government Act 1993 (as amended) and Regulations made thereunder, Australian Accounting 

Standards and professional pronouncements and the Local Government Code of Accounting 

Practice and Financial Reporting. 

 

Before the financial statements can be formally referred for audit, Council is required to adopt a 

statement on its financial statements.  The statement must indicate: 

 

(a) Whether or not the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with: 

 

i. the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and Regulations made thereunder; 

ii. the Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements; and 

iii. the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 

 

(b) whether or not those statements presents fairly Council‟s operating result and financial 

position for the year; 

 

(c) whether or not the statements accord with Council‟s accounting and other records; and 

 

(d) whether or not the signatories know of anything that would make the report false or 

misleading in any way. 

 

The statement must be signed by the Mayor, at least one Councillor (generally the Chair of the 

Corporate & Works Committee), the General Manager and the Responsible Accounting Officer.  

The Manager Finance is the Responsible Accounting Officer. 

 

To assist Councillors with their decision in respect of the recommendations to this report, the 

following statement by the General Manager, Director Corporate Services and Manager Finance is 

provided: 

 

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the general purpose financial 

statements.  We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following: 

 

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government 

Act 1993 (as amended) and Regulations made thereunder, Australian Accounting 

Standards and professional pronouncements and the Local Government Code of 

Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting so as to present fairly Council‟s operating 

result and financial position for the year. 

 There have been no irregularities involving management or employees who have a 

significant role in the accounting and internal control systems or that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

 We have made available to the auditors all books of account and supporting documents 

and all minutes of meetings of Council. 

 The financial report is free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
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 The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual arrangements that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.  There has 

been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

 We have recorded or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities, both actual and contingent, 

and have disclosed all guarantees that we have given to third parties. 

 All claims have been properly accrued in the financial statements.  No other claims in 

connection with litigation have been or are expected to be received. 

 There are no formal or informal set-off arrangements with any of our cash and 

investment accounts.  Except as disclosed in the financial statements we have no 

overdraft arrangements. 

 

Accordingly, we believe that it is in order for Council to adopt its statement of certification in 

relation to the Annual Financial Reports which is presented in Recommendation „C‟ to this report. 

 

Review by the Audit & Assurance Committee 

 

The 2012/13 financial statements were considered by Council‟s Audit & Assurance Committee on 

11 September 2013. 

 

A number of minor typographical corrections and disclosure improvements were agreed at the 

meeting, none of which changed the reported results.  The agreed changes have been incorporated 

into the financial statements now presented to the Corporate & Works Committee. 

 

The Audit & Assurance Committee resolved: 

 

That, subject to the changes agreed at the meeting, the Audit & Assurance Committee 

supports the staff recommendation to the Corporate & Works Committee on 16 September 

regarding the adoption of Council’s statement on the Financial Statements for the year ended 

30 June 2013. 

 

Overall Financial Position 

 

At the end of the 2012/13 financial year, Council‟s financial position remains satisfactory.  Details 

of the final results for the three indicators provided with each quarterly review of the Budget are 

provided below. 

 

Working Funds 

 

Working funds are accumulated funds that have not been set aside for a specific purpose and 

provide Council with some capacity to respond to unforeseen circumstances.  Council‟s working 

funds decreased from $2,615k to $2,568k as a result of the year‟s operations, a reduction of $94k on 

the March 2013 quarterly budget review forecast result. 

 

Item 

Original 

Budget 

$’000 

March 

Forecast 

Result 

$’000 

Actual 
1
 

Result 

$’000 

Working Funds 1 July 2012 2,615 2,615 2,615 

Budget Result (Working Funds movement) 28 
(Increase) 

47 
(Increase) 

(47) 
(Decrease) 

Working Funds 30 June 2013 2,643 2,662 2,568 
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At $2,568k, the workings funds balance is above the benchmark level of working funds Council has 

calculated for 30 June 2013, being $2,392k.  Council has traditionally calculated the benchmark 

level of working funds as the balance of arrears of rates plus the value of inventory at 30 June each 

year, with inventory being defined as stores and materials held for daily works and services. 

 

Further, at $2,568k the working funds balance is considered an adequate level of funds to set aside 

to respond to any unforeseen circumstances, particularly having regard to the positive financial 

performance indicators referred to earlier in the report. 

 

The main variations giving rise to the reduction in the working funds position since the March 

forecast are set out in the table below. 

 

Item 

March 

Forecast 

$’000 

Actual 

$’000 
1
 

Variance 

Favourable/ 

(Unfavourable) 

$’000 % 

 

Comment 

Income 

Fees & Charges      

Mobile Bin Service 1,875 1,826 (49) 2.6% The original budget forecast of 

$1,805k was projected based on 

an increase in fees for the service.  

A revision of the forecast to 

$1,875k during the year was not 

achieved. 

Parking Meter 

Charges 

1,750 1,716 (34) 1.9% Works on both Oxford Street and 

in Double Bay impacted on 

income received from parking 

meters. 

Development 

Application Fees 

570 471 (99) 17.4% This variance reflects the smaller 

number and nature of 

development applications received 

during 2012/13. 

s.96 Amendment 

Applications 

215 187 (28) 13.2% This variance is consistent with 

Development Application Fees. 

Certificate Fees 495 522 27 5.5% Conservative forecasts based on 

previous years‟ lower levels of 

activity were exceeded. 

Crane Permits 80 92 12 15.2% An increase in activity in the final 

quarter saw the forecast income 

exceeded. 

Advertising Fees 306 286 (20) 6.4% Consistent with DA and s.96 fees, 

the income target for 2012/13 was 

not achieved. 

Work Zone Charges 335 315 (20) 5.9% There is also a correlation 

between development activity and 

work zones.  Not achieving this 

income target reflects that level of 

activity. 

Interest 

Interest 1,870 1,833 (37) 2.0% Falling interest rates over the 

course of the year saw interest on 

investments fall short of forecast 

by $15k as reported in the June 

Monthly Financial Report to 

C&W on 15 July, with further 

shortfalls of $17k in interest from 

day-to-day funds in our bank 

account and $5k in interest on 

overdue Rates. 
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Item 

March 

Forecast 

$’000 

Actual 

$’000 
1
 

Variance 

Favourable/ 

(Unfavourable) 

$’000 % 

 

Comment 

Investments at Fair 

Value 

1,523 1,941 417 27.4% This variance arises from the year 

end revaluation of BlackRock 

CMF and Emerald CDO, plus the 

routine June quarter revaluation of 

FRNs 

Grants & Contributions 

Operating Grants 2,100 2,091 (9) 0.4% The only variance of note in 

relation to grants is a $14k 

shortfall in Council‟s Bus Routes 

subsidy arising from an update to 

10 year old bus route length data. 

 

It should also be noted that 

Council received an advance 

payment of its 2013/14 Financial 

Assistance Grant in June of $802k 

which was transferred to Reserve. 

Capital Grants & Contributions 

 

NOTE:  The recognition of capital grants is tied to the timing of capital expenditure.  Further, any variances in 

Section 94 and 94A contributions are transferred to Reserve.  There is no net effect on working funds arising from 

capital grants and contributions. 

Other Revenues 

Recovered Costs 428 501 74 17.2% $31k of this variance relates to 

Paid Maternity Leave reimbursed 

by the Federal Department of 

Human Services. 

Fuel Tax Credits 30 10 (20) 65.4% Changes to entitlements, and a 

transfer to the DWM Reserve, 

gave rise to this variance.  It 

should be noted that Council has 

engaged a consultant to review its 

entitlements in light of further 

legislative change. 

Various – Fines & 

Penalties 

5,261 5,463 202 3.8% A conservative forecast, together 

with higher than average 

enforcement collections in the last 

quarter, led to this variance. 

Various – Leases & 

Licences 

4,190 4,232 42 1.0% While small in percentage terms, 

the $42k favourable variance in 

leases & licences arises mainly 

from footpath $18k, road $6k and 

kiosk leases $7k all exceeding 

forecasts. 

Easement 

Compensation 

7 0 (7) 100.0% No easement compensation was 

received during the year. 

Total of Income 

Variances 

21,035 21,487 452 2.1%  

Expenditure 
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Item 

March 

Forecast 

$’000 

Actual 

$’000 
1
 

Variance 

Favourable/ 

(Unfavourable) 

$’000 % 

 

Comment 

Employee Benefits and On-costs 

Various – Salaries & 

Wages 

27,144 27,706 (562) 2.1% This variance, while reasonable in 

percentage terms, is significant in 

dollar terms.  It arises from a 

combination of not achieving the 

forecast 5% vacancy factor 

throughout the year together with 

skills and market related pay 

increases across Council.  It also 

relates, in part, to not capitalising 

the level of salaries & wages 

forecast in the budget to be 

incurred on capital works projects, 

thereby increasing costs in the 

operating budget. 

Various – ELE on 

Termination 

395 369 26 6.6% This reflects the lower level of 

turnover indicated by not 

achieving the vacancy factor as 

noted above. 

Workers' 

Compensation 

Insurance 

1,200 1,186 14 1.2% The final cost of claims was less 

than forecast resulting in smaller 

than anticipated premium 

adjustment for 2012/13. 

Materials & Contracts 

NOTE:  While there is no net effect on working funds, some expenditure budgeted for in the Capital Budget such as 

environmental education, sustainability programs, flood risk studies and minor capital works are not capitalised at 

year end as they do not ultimately meet capitalisation criteria.  The total of the expenditure not capitalised in 2012/13 

was $1,011k ($1,125k in 2011/12) which is disclosed in Materials & Contracts. 

Materials, Goods & 

Services 

2,101 2,017 84 4.0% This is a broad category of 

expenditure across the whole of 

Council.  The variance arises 

mainly from savings in: 

 IT $27k 

 Community Development 

$20k 

 Governance $18k 

 Library $10k 

 All others $9k 

Furniture & Fittings 

< $3,000 

36 19 17 47.4% Provision is made each year for 

routine replacement of furniture & 

fittings as required.  At year end 

there was under-expenditure in: 

 Property Maintenance $9k 

 Venue Hire $4k 

 All others $4k 

Vehicle Parts & 

Repairs 

382 395 (13) 3.5% Unforeseen parts and repairs 

across Council‟s plant & vehicle 

fleet gave rise to this small 

variance. 

Printing & Stationery 196 173 23 11.6% Numerous small under-

expenditures across Council gave 

rise to this variance. 

Stores Issues 269 299 (30) 11.1% The main areas of over-

expenditure giving rise to this 

variance are: 

 Civil Works ($17k) 

 Business Centres ($5k) 

 Cleaning products ($5k) 

 Property Maintenance ($4k) 
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Item 

March 

Forecast 

$’000 

Actual 

$’000 
1
 

Variance 

Favourable/ 

(Unfavourable) 

$’000 % 

 

Comment 

Recurrent Contracts 614 585 29 4.7% The major variance here is under-

expenditure on Smart Pole and 

Pavers cleaning and maintenance 

in Business Centres $31k 

Lifecycle 

Maintenance 

(of Council 

buildings) 

99 80 19 19.3% Budgeted for the first time in 

12/13, some projects were 

completed for less than 

anticipated. 

Temporary Staff 370 408 (38) 10.3% Temporary staff are sometimes 

engaged to cover vacancies as 

necessary.  This over-expenditure 

related to such occasions in Civil 

Works ($26k) and Builders 

Restorations ($12k). 

Legal Expenses - 

General 

1,296 1,460 (164) 12.6% Areas of over-expenditure 

include: 

 Development Control 

($118k) 

 Compliance ($71k) 

 Open Space ($18k) 

This over-expenditure was offset 

by spending less than forecast in: 

 Car Parks $23k 

 PL/PI Insurance $15k 

Depreciation 

NOTE:  While Depreciation does not impact on this working funds analysis, it is worth noting that, overall, 

depreciation was $236 greater than forecast ($10,347k compared to $10,611k).  There were increases in Plant & 

Equipment ($72k), Infrastructure ($148k) and Other Structures ($211k) depreciation offset by a reduction in Office 

Furniture & Equipment ($201k) as assets reached the end of their useful life. 
 

Borrowing Costs 

The repayment of interest on loans was in line with budget forecasts. 
 

Other Costs 

Interest Paid on 

Deposit Refunds 

200 176 24 12.0% This saving reflects the lower 

interest rates now being used in 

calculating interest payable. 

Advertising 318 334 (16) 5.1% This over-expenditure relates to 

additional advertising in the 

Wentworth Courier relating to 

Woollahra News ($12k) and 

Development Applications ($7k). 

Bad Debts 20 41 (21) 106.3% This variance arises from 

increased provisions for health 

inspections ($14k) and various 

sundry debtors totaling ($7k). 

Cont'ns to Other 

Organisations 

429 400 29 6.6% Budget provisions for Double Bay 

Festivities and the Double Bay 

Partnership were not fully 

expended. 

Electricity Charges 425 459 (34) 8.0% Forecasting the impact of carbon 

pricing and other factors on 

electricity prices has been 

difficult.  There were increases in 

costs across Council‟s buildings, 

the largest being at Redleaf ($24k) 

and Depots totaling ($10k). 
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Item 

March 

Forecast 

$’000 

Actual 

$’000 
1
 

Variance 

Favourable/ 

(Unfavourable) 

$’000 % 

 

Comment 

Councillors Fees & 

Expenses 

286 271 15 5.2% This variance arises from saving 

in Councillors Fees of $6k due to 

the election period and under-

expenditure of Councillors 

Expenses of $9k. 

Postage 146 122 24 16.7% As a result of a service provider 

change, billing for Rate Notice 

mailing was combined with other 

mail and this budget revised 

accordingly.  Costs for Rates 

Notices were later transferred to 

Rates where they were budgeted. 

Street Lighting 

Charges 

1,456 1,439 17 1.2% Unlike other electricity charges, a 

more than sufficient provision was 

made for increased costs in this 

regard which was under-expended 

by a small amount. 

SES Subsidy 55 68 (13) 24.3% Known quarterly payments of 

$17k for 2012/13 should have 

seen this budget provision 

reviewed during the year. 

Tipping Charges 4,489 4,524 (35) 0.8% While very small in percentage 

terms, the ($35k) over-

expenditure in tipping fees 

impacts on working funds.  It 

mainly relates to Street Cleaning 

($23k) and Business Centres ($9k) 

with the balance coming from 

Open Space. 

Various – Self 

Funded Losses 

480 342 138 28.9% Claims experience from previous 

years did not continue in 2012/13 

resulting in lower expenditure 

than forecast on Tree root claims 

$95k and other claims $43k 

3899 - Revenue 

Collection Charges 

207 230 (23) 11.2% Introduction of new ticketing 

machines in car parks and credit 

card payment facilities incurred 

costs of ($17k) later in the 

financial year.  Increased card 

usage at parking meters saw a 

($9k) over-expenditure here.  

Collection charges for all other 

services was $3k under budget. 

3903 - File Archival 

& Retrieval Costs 

168 179 (11) 6.6% File retrieval activity was a little 

higher than forecast. 

3913 - Water Rates 114 142 (28) 24.5% This variance relates entirely to 

public open space and is a 

combination of an under-

estimation, increased pricing and 

additional consumption to keep 

surfaces in reasonable condition. 

3924 - Recoverable 

Expenses 

174 263 (89) 51.2% This variance includes ($75k) 

expended on flood mitigation 

pumping at South Street and an 

unsuccessful recovery from 

RailCorp.  Negotiations with 

RailCorp continue with a view to 

completing upgrade works to 

resolve the issue.  The balance of 

the variance is offset by higher 

Recovered Costs noted above. 
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Item 

March 

Forecast 

$’000 

Actual 

$’000 
1
 

Variance 

Favourable/ 

(Unfavourable) 

$’000 % 

 

Comment 

Total of 

Expenditure 

Variances 

43,068 43,686 (618) 1.3%  

Total Operating Budget Variations (166)   

      

 

Capital Budget 

     

Project Expenditure 21,809 21,715 
2
 94 0.4% There were overall savings across 

all projects. 

 

Net savings across the Capital Budget 94   

 

Reserve Funding   

 

5985 - Transfer from 

Insurance Reserve 

25 0 (25) 100.0 Insurance Reserve funding 

omitted from Revotes. 

 

Net of all other budget variations 

 

 

3 

 

 

Increase in Working Funds (94)   

 

1. Adjusted for Domestic Waste Management and Preschool Reserve transfers. 

2. Includes rollovers and revotes to indicate Council‟s total commitment to capital expenditure and the 

effective variation to budget. 

 

Particular attention is drawn to the $417k improvement in fair value adjustments to investments.  

Ordinarily, this improvement would be transferred to Reserve.  In light of other budget variances, 

notably not achieving the salaries and wages vacancy factor, it is proposed that a transfer to Reserve 

is not made. 

 

This proposal is made in light of the treatment of Reserves at the end of last financial year when 

there was an improvement in the budget result.  In considering the Financial Statements for 

2011/12, Council resolved, in part; 

 

B. That Council endorse the following transfers to restricted cash reserves from the $569 

surplus for 2011/12, resulting in a final working funds balance at 30 June 2012 of $2,615k, or 

$231k above Council’s benchmark working funds balance of $2,384k at 30 June 2012.  

 

Insurance Reserve $90,326 

Computer Reserve $150,000 

Property Reserve  $250,000 

 

When a favourable working funds result resulted in 2011/12, $490k was transferred to Reserves.  It 

is reasonable that, in light of a less favourable working funds result in 2012/13, the potential $417k 

transfer to Reserves in 2012/13 is not made.  The Financial Statements, as presented, have been 

prepared on this basis. 

 

Unrestricted Current Ratio 

 

The unrestricted current ratio is the ratio of current assets to current liabilities after allowing for 

external restrictions on our cash such as Section 94 Contributions and unexpended grants.  It 

provides an indication of our capacity to cover our liabilities. 
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The reported unrestricted current ratio is 2.74:1.  As at the March Review, the 2012/13 budget 

forecast an unrestricted current ratio of 2.18:1.  The forecast assumes total expenditure of the 

budget, however, at year end there are inevitably a number of projects that are not completed and 

are rolled into the following year‟s budget. 

 

Details of the calculation of this ratio, the effect of rollovers and the variances to the forecast, are 

provided in the table below. 

 
 $’000 

30/6/13 

(Actual) 

$’000 

30/6/13 

(incl. 

rollovers) 

$’000 

Forecast 

$’000 

Variances to 

Forecast 

Components:     

Current Assets 41,381 36,030 35,270 760 

Less: 

Restricted Debtors 

Externally Restricted Cash 

 

1,685 

6,111 

 

1,685 

3,702 

 

677 

3,864 

 

1,008 

(162) 

Equals: Numerator (top number) 33,585 30,643 30,729 (86) 

 

Current Liabilities 

 

27,831 

 

27,831 

 

28,914 

 

(1,083) 

Less: 

Restricted Liabilities 

Liabilities not expected to settle in the next 12 

months 

 

948 

 

14,623 

 

948 

 

14,623 

 

927 

 

13,917 

 

21 

 

706 

Equals: Denominator (bottom number) 12,260 12,260 14,070 (1,810) 

 

Unrestricted Current Ratio 

 

2.74:1 

 

2.50:1 

 

2.18:1 

 

 

 

At this level, Council‟s unrestricted current ratio remains above the minimum benchmark level of 

1.5:1. 

 

The table below provides and analysis of the variances in the ratio between June 2013 and June 

2012. 

 
 $’000 

30/6/12 

$’000 

30/6/11 

$’000 

Variances 

Components:    

Current Assets 41,381 41,665 (284) 

Less: 

Restricted Debtors 

Externally Restricted Cash 

 

1,685 

6,111 

 

676 

8,022 

 

1,009 

(1,911) 

Equals: Numerator (top number) 33,585 32,967 618 

 

Current Liabilities 

 

27,831 

 

27,829 

 

2 

Less: 

Restricted Liabilities 

Liabilities not expected to settle in the next 12 months 

 

948 

 

14,623 

 

927 

 

13,917 

 

21 

 

706 

Equals: Denominator (bottom number) 12,260 12,985 (725) 

 

Unrestricted Current Ratio 

 

2.74:1 

 

2.54:1 

 

 

 

Operating Result 

 

The Income Statement discloses Council‟s income and operating expenses for the year along with a 

comparison to the original budget adopted by Council and to the prior year.  It is set out in the table 

below, along with the revised budget forecasts from the March quarterly budget review. 
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$’000 

Original 

12/13 

Budget 

$’000 

Revised 

12/13 

Budget 

  

$’000 

12/13 

Actual 

 

$’000 

11/12 

Actual 

  Income from Continuing Operations   

44,297 44,353 Rates & Annual Charges 44,359 41,885 

9,509 9,155 User Charges & Fees 8,939 8,671 

1,960 3,394 Interest & Investment Revenue 3,774 2,932 

10,558 10,822 Other Revenues 12,030 10,438 

2,863 2,100 Operating Grants & Contributions 3,120 3,515 

2,557 4,677 Capital Grants & Contributions 4,356 3,620 

268 613 Net gain from disposal of assets -  -  

72,012 75,113 Total Income 76,578 71,061 

   

Expenses from Continuing Operations 

  

32,431 32,926 Employee Benefits & On-Costs 32,936 32,425 

439 439 Borrowing Costs 439 507 

11,831 12,490 Materials & Contracts 13,395 12,623 

10,113 10,111 Depreciation & Amortisation 10,347 10,290 

15,446 15,432 Other Expenses 15,089 13,498 

-  -  Net loss from disposal of assets 1,455 830 

70,260 71,399 Total Expenses 73,661 70,173 

1,752 3,715 Net Operating Result 2,917 888 

 

(805) 

 

(962) 

Net Operating Result before Capital 

Grants & Contributions 

 

(1,439) 

 

(2,732) 

 

Total income increased from $71,061k in 2011/12 to $76,578k in 2012/13, an increase of $5,517k 

or 7.8%. 

 

Operating expenses increased from $70,173k to $73,661k, an increase of $3,488k or 5.0%. 

 

An analysis of the 2012/13 actuals compared to the original budget appears in Note 16 to the 

financial statements while an analysis compared to the revised budget is detailed in the working 

funds section of the report above.  Commentary on variations between 2013 and 2012 is provided in 

the next section of the report. 

 

An area of focus is the „bottom bottom line‟, the net operating result before capital grants and 

contributions.  The deficit result reflects Council‟s structural deficit, an issue that has been reported 

to the Corporate & Works Committee before as one of the issues that need to be addressed in the 

development of Council‟s „Sustainability Model‟ long term financial plan. 

 

TCorp Performance Indicators 

 

Building on the recent financial sustainability review undertaken by NSW Treasury Corporation 

(TCorp), its indicators are now included in the Financial Statements.  The Committee is reminded 

that the outcome of TCorp‟s assessment for Woollahra was that we are „Moderately‟ sustainable 

with a „Neutral‟ outlook.  As has been previously reported, in comparison to all NSW councils, 

Woollahra‟s results were certainly not disappointing and somewhat expected, given our previous 

long term financial planning had focussed on securing our existing Environmental & Infrastructure 

levies through our 2011 special rate variation. 
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The table below sets out the new performances measures and Council‟s results (green indicating the 

benchmark is exceeded, red indicating Council is below benchmark) together with TCorp‟s 

benchmark. 

 

Performance Measure Benchmark 2013 2012 2011 

Operating Performance > - 4.0% -6.09% -3.7% -3.4% 

Own Source Operating Revenue > 60% 72.23% 71.7% 72.0% 

Unrestricted Current Ratio > 1.50 2.74 2.54 2.28 

Debt Service Cover Ratio > 2.0 x 4.74 6.03 5.38 

Capital Expenditure Ratio > 1.1 x 1.13 0.95 1.30 

Infrastructure Backlog Ratio < 0.02 x 0.06 0.05 0.03 

Asset Maintenance Ratio > 1.0 x 1.10 1.05 0.79 

Building & Infrastructure Renewals Ratio > 1.0 x 0.73 0.57 0.45 

Cash Expense Cover Ratio > 3 months 1.03 1.6 0.9 

Interest Cover Ratio > 4.0 x 14.93 16.41 13.08 

 

It has been reported in the past, and confirmed in the recent TCorp Financial Assessment of 

Council, that there are a number of key areas that require particular attention in the development of 

the Sustainability Model long term financial plan.  These areas are: 

 

 increased investment in infrastructure renewal, particularly buildings infrastructure; 

 improving the level to which Council „reserves‟ funds to cover future Employee Leave 

Entitlements and long-term security deposits and bonds; and 

 addressing Council‟s structural deficit (i.e. increases in recurrent expenditure exceeding 

increases in recurrent income).  

 

These issues are reaffirmed by the 2013 performance measure outcomes. 

 

Comparison - 30 June 2013 to 30 June 2012 

 

Income (Page 4 of Annexure 1) 

 

Rates & Annual Charges (increased from $41,885k to $44,359k ($2,474k or 5.9%)) (Note 3(a) 

p.30 of Annexure 1) 

 

Ordinary Rates income increased from $28,733k to $30,153, an increase of $1,420k or 4.9% which 

reflects the second year of Council‟s special rate variation increase approved by IPART in June 

2011, an effective increase of 4.1% plus the 0.4% carbon price advance. 

 

Council‟s Environmental & Infrastructure Renewal levy increased from $3,396k to $3,506k, an 

increase of $110k or 3.3% consistent with the 3% rate peg forecast in our SRV application plus the 

0.4% carbon price advance. 

 

The domestic waste management charge (annual charge) increased from $340.65 to $373.95 for 

2012/13 or 9.8% which, together with growth in the number of additional services, generated an 

increase in income from $9,231k to $10,171, or $940k (10.2%). 

 

These variations add to $2,470k. 
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User Charges & Fees (increased from $8,671k to $8,939k ($268k or 3.1%)) (Note 3(b) p.31 of 

Annexure 1) 

 

The largest variation relates to Restoration Charges for works undertaken on behalf of utility 

companies, which increased in 2012/13 by $194k as a result of more restoration works being 

undertaken.  Other large increases arose from trade waste services $169k, parking meter charges 

$126k, kindergarten fees $42k, filming fees $27k, inspection fees $21k and certificate fees $19k. 

 

There were also a number of decreases in income including work zone changes ($118k), 

development application and related fees ($116k), compliance levy ($39k), mobile bin & crate sales 

($39k) and principal certifying authority fees ($26k) 

 

These variations add to a net increase in income of $260k. 

 

Interest (increased from $2,932k to $3,774k ($842k or 28.7%)) (Note 3(c) p.32 of Annexure 1) 

 

This increase is mainly due to the favourable fair value adjustments made over the course of 

2012/13 arising from the maturity or sale of investment securities.  The $1,941k fair value increase 

in 2012/13 was a $1,364k increase over the $577k fair value increase in 2011/12. 

 

Actual interest earned on investments fell from $2,160k in 2011/12 to $1,673k in 2012/13, a 

reduction of $487k and reflects the lower interest rates prevailing throughout 2012/13. 

 

Interest on overdue rates also decreased from $195k in 2011/12 to $160k in 2012/13 or $35k due to 

a drop in the interest rate from 11% to 10% and slightly lower levels of arrears throughout the year. 

 

These variations add to a net increase of $842k. 

 

Other Revenues (increased from $10,438k to $12,030k ($1,592k or 15.3%)) (Note 3(d) p.32 of 

Annexure 1) 

 

Council‟s Investment Properties (properties held primarily to earn rental) were re-valued in 2012/13 

by an external valuer resulting in an increase in Fair Value of $850k.  There was no fair value 

adjustment in 2011/12 resulting in a $850k increase in income recorded for 2012/13. 

 

Another significant increase in income come from fines and penalties, $715k.  This increase relates 

to a number of factors including a 6% increase in the number of infringements issued, a higher 

average value of infringement issued and improved recovery through the State Debt Recovery 

Office.  Other increases include recovered costs $68k and sale of recycling material $57k. 

 

Offsetting these increases in income was a decrease in easement compensation ($116k). 

 

These variations add to a net increase in income of $1,574k. 

 

Operating Grants & Contributions (decreased from $3,515k to $3,120k ($395k or 11.2%) 

(Note 3(e) and (f) p.33 of Annexure 1) 

 

The major decrease in operating grants relates to the Financial Assistance Grant (FAG) and the 

effect of advance payments made by the Federal Government in June 2011, 2012 and 2013.  In 

2010/11, the advance payment was only one quarter of the FAG.  The makeup of the disclosed FAG 

for 2011/12 and 2012/13 is shown in the table below. 
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 2011/12 

$’000 

2012/13 

$’000 

Variance 

$’000 

Full Year FAG 1,522 1,553 31 

CPI adjustment 5 (35) (40) 

Less: Advance payment made in previous year (380) (788) (408) 

Plus Advance payment made in current year 788 802 14 

Disclosed FAG 1,935 1,532 (403) 

 

Capital Grants & Contributions (increased from $3,620k to $4,356k ($736k or 20.3%)) (Note 3 € 

and (f) p.32 of Annexure 1) 

 

Revenue from capital grants can vary significantly from year to year depending on the nature of 

projects being undertaken and the timing of related expenditure and also the payment policies of 

funding bodies. 

 

There were decreases in drainage grants of ($132k) and increases in open space grants of $63k and 

roads (transport) grants of $148k. 

 

Section 94 and Section 94A Developer Contributions increased by $403k while contributions to 

works increased by $292k. 

 

These variations add to a net increase in capital grants and contributions of $774k. 

 

Expenses (Page 4 of Annexure 1) 

 

Employee Benefits and On-costs (increased from $32,425k to $32,936k ($511k or 1.6%)) (Note 

4(a) p.34, Annexure 1) 

 

Salaries and wages for Council increased year-on-year by $926k or 4.0%.  This increase includes an 

Award increase of 3.25%, increases attributable to staff progressing through the salary system and 

market increases allowing Council to remain competitive in attracting and retaining staff.  During 

the course of 2012/13 ($98k) more salaries and wages were capitalised than in 2011/12. 

 

Employee Leave Entitlements payments were ($439k) lower in 2012/13 compared to 2011/12.  The 

main reason for this was the retirement of two long serving members of staff in 2011/12 resulting in 

the payout of $512k in entitlements. 

 

Superannuation expenses increased by $109k or 3.9%, consistent with the increase in salaries and 

wages above. 

 

Workers‟ Compensation insurance increased by only $24k due to the increase in salaries and wages. 

 

These variations add to a net increase of $522k. 

 

Borrowing Costs (Decreased from $507k to $439k, ($68k or13.4%)) (Note 4(b) p.34, Annexure 1) 

 

Council has two current loans.  The first, for $3,070k, was raised in 2006 for a period of 10 years 

and will be fully repaid in June 2016.  This loan was raised to fund a range of infrastructure works 

that included the completion of the Five Ways Paddington commercial centre improvements and the 

Rose Bay Promenade.  Annual repayments on this loan are $420k.   
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The second loan was raised in 2008 for $6,525k over a period of 10 years.  The purpose of this loan 

was to fund streetscapes improvements to the six business centres across the municipality but 

mainly the Double Bay business centre. The loan has annual repayments of $963k.   

 

Council‟s total annual debt servicing cost is $1,383k. 

 

The decrease in borrowing costs, the interest component of debt servicing, reflects the lower interest 

repayments required as Council‟s loans progress toward maturity.  Total debt servicing (principal 

and interest) remained unchanged. 

 

Materials & Contracts (increased from $12,623k to $13,395 ($772k or 6.1%)) (Note 4(c) p.35, 

Annexure 1) 

 

Raw Materials & Consumables (decreased by $269k (5.3%)) 

 

As noted in the working funds analysis above, there is an amount of project expenditure from 

Council's capital budget that ultimately does not meet capitalisation criteria and is expensed at year 

end.  In 2011/12 the amount expensed was $1,125 which fell to $1,011 in 2012/13, reducing Raw 

Materials & Consumables by $114k. 

 

Other variances were reductions in: 

 

 Materials, $87k (4.3%) 

 Fuel, $41k (5.6%) 

 Vehicle parts & repairs $72k (15.3%) 

 

And an increase in: 

 

 Protective clothing, $20k (23.8%) 

 

These variations add to a net decrease of $274k. 

 

Contractor & Consultancy Costs (increased by $544k (16.8%)) 

 

The main increases in the use of general contracts and consultancies relate to: 

 

 Restoration works, $245k (43.4%) 

 Civil maintenance $160k (51.8%) 

 Temporary staff, $107k (32.6%) 

 Internal audit, $68k ($117.2%) 

 

The increases were offset by decreases in the use of contracts and consultants in: 

 

 Contract plant hire $24k (34.8%) 

 Assessment consultants $18k (56.3%) 

 

These variations add to a net increase of $538k. 

 

Legal Expenses (increased by $326k (27.1%) 

 

Legal expenses increased in Development Control from $551k in 2011/12, when 23 separate 

matters incurred costs, to $757k in 2012/13, when 30 separate matters incurred costs, an increase of 

$206k.  While total costs rose, the average cost per matter remained relatively unchanged, 

increasing from $24k to $25k. 
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Legal expenses also increased in Compliance from $219k in 2011/12, when 17 separate matters 

incurred costs, to $281k in 2012/13, when 19 separate matters incurred costs, an increase of $62k.  

Again, while total costs rose, the average cost per matter remained relatively unchanged, increasing 

from $13k to $15k. 

 

Legal expenses also increased in PL/PI Insurance from $34k in 2011/12, when 8 separate matters 

incurred costs, to $85k in 2012/13, when 13 separate matters incurred costs, an increase of $51k.  

On this occasion the average cost per matter also rose, increasing from $4k to $7k, although one 

matter incurred costs of $46k alone.  Without this matter, the average cost in 2012/13 would have 

been $3k. 

 

Legal expenses in Open Space & Trees increased by $52k due to costs incurred on the McKell Park 

matter. 

 

Finally, legal expenses fell in Property from $94k in 2011/12, when 33 separate matters incurred 

costs, to $49k in 2012/13, when 27 separate matters incurred costs, a decrease of $45k.  The 

average cost per matter fell from $3k to $2k. 

 

The total of these variances is a net increase in legal expenses of $326k. 

 

Auditors Remuneration 

 

Council‟s audit fee increased by CPI in accordance with its contract with the external auditor. 

 

Depreciation (increased from $10,290k to $10,347 ($57k or 0.6%)) (Note 4(d) p.36 of Annexure 

1) 

 

Increases in all classes of assets arising from the depreciation of 2011/12 acquisitions were offset by 

a reduction in office equipment as assets reached the end of their useful life. 

 

Other Expenses (increased from $13,498k to $15,089k ($1,591k (11.8%)) (Note 4(e) p.37 of 

Annexure 1) 

 

There are numerous increases and decreases making up this overall variance.  Among the increases 

were: 

 

 Waste disposal charges, $752k (19.5%); 

 Election expenses $296k (100%) – incurred each four years 

 Donations, contributions & assistance $158k (19.0%) including $85k arising from the change 

in operational arrangements at Woollahra Seniors. 

 Council‟s contribution to Double Bay Partnership $108k (900%) 

 Electricity charges, $129k (39.2%), the main increases being $53k related to O‟Dea Avenue 

Depot not being billed at all in 2011/12 following transition to a new supplier, other depots 

$18k, car parks $17k, Redleaf $22k, Libraries $8k, park buildings $7k and community 

facilities $6k; 

 Streetlighting $103k (7.7%) 

 Insurance premiums $77k (6.2%) 

 Recoverable expenses, $40k (17.8%) 

 Bad & doubtful debts $36k (327.3%) 

 Bank charges (including merchant service fees) $28k (13.7%) 
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There were offsetting decreases in: 

 

 Insurance deductibles (self funded losses) $73k comprising mainly a reduction in tree root 

claims. 

 Interest paid on deposits refunded $65k (28.0%) 

 

These variations add to a net increase of $1,589k.  There were smaller increases and decreases 

across a number of other expense items making up the remaining $2k net increase in other 

expenses. 

 

Net Losses on Sale of Assets (increased from $830k to $1,455k ($625k (75.3%)) (Note 5 p.38 of 

Annexure 1) 

 

The major difference between the two years is the proceeds from the sale of parcels of unmade road 

totalling $286k, $421k in 2011/12 falling to $135k in 2012/13. 

 

The loss on sale of plant and equipment, arising from the routine replacement of Council‟s plant 

and vehicle fleet, rose from $176k to $388k through a general decline is sales prices and an increase 

in the number of items sold throughout the year. 

 

The retirement (write off) of renewed infrastructure assets increased from $1,075k to $1,202k.  This 

is due to the increase in asset renewals capitalised for the year. 

 

Restricted Cash Balances 

 

The table below details Council‟s restricted cash balances (grossed up for restricted receivables and 

provisions) and the notional fair value adjustment arising from the valuation of Council‟s 

investment portfolio. 

 

Externally Restricted Cash      

Purpose 

Opening 

Balance 

July 12 

Transfer 

To 

Transfers 

From 

 Fair Value 

Adjustment 

12/13 

Closing 

Balance June 

13  

Section 94 Contributions 2,728,736 247,207 (57,616) 161,666 3,079,994 

Section 94A Contributions 1,224,295 1,497,084 (1,821,284) 72,646 972,741 

Unexpended Grants 1,070,336 448,918 (436,706)  1,082,549 

Environmental Levy 43,746  (9,678)  34,068 

Enviro & Infrastructure Levy 1,808,905 3,617,106 (4,492,711)  933,301 

Stormwater Mgt Charge 174,087 485,146 (474,024)  185,209 

Domestic Waste 721,756 80,885 (298,446) 54,185 558,380 

 7,771,862 6,376,346 (7,590,464) 288,497 6,846,242 
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Internally Restricted Cash       

Purpose 

Opening 

Balance 

July 12 

Transfer 

To 

Transfers 

From 

 Fair Value 

Adjustment 

12/13 

Closing 

Balance June 

13  

Employee Leave Entitlements 1,088,534   71,406 1,159,940 

Plant Replacement 484,197 111,686 (256,364) 8,963 348,482 

Insurance 235,379 75,287  15,729 326,395 

Computer 686,871  (121,528)  565,343 

Infrastructure 12,832   60,168 73,000 

Election Reserve 200,000  (200,000)  0 

Deposits 8,829,836  (54,889)  8,774,947 

Kindergarten 182,569 19,234  6,477 208,280 

Loan 183,907  (2,780)  181,127 

Property Reserve 12,720,491 384,816 (419,667) 1,001,575 13,687,215 

Carry Over Works 1,264,970 1,019,081 (834,290)  1,449,761 

Financial Assistance Grant 788,485 802,485 (788,485)  802,485 

General Reserve 17,548 50,000  14,092 81,640 

 26,695,619 2,462,589 (2,678,002) 1,178,410 27,658,616 

Total Restricted Cash 34,467,481 8,838,935 (10,268,466) 1,466,907 34,504,857 

 

Investment Portfolio Performance and Valuation 

 

Council‟s weighted average return on its term deposit investments consistently outperformed the 90 

day term deposit index throughout the year.  The steady decline in rates through a number of 

interest rates cuts during the year is clear to see, falling from 5.7% at the start of the year to 4.2% at 

the end. 

 

 
 

While the term deposit index was outperformed throughout the year, total interest earned ($1,649k) 

fell slightly below the revised budget forecast ($1,664).  This result is shown in the chart below. 
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Other Entities 
 

Council is a member of the Premsure Insurance Pool which is in the final stages of being wound up.  

It is included in Council‟s financial statements by way of joint venture, although it is reported that 

Council holds zero equity.  Premsure is subject to separate audit and Council is provided with 

financial reports for the purposes of consolidation. 

 

Council is aware that the Pool continues to hold surplus funds that will be distributed to members 

upon closure of the Pool.  An actuarial analysis of the various fund years that remain open is 

required before any distribution of funds can be determined.  On this basis, at reporting date, 

Council disclosed a contingent asset in Note 18 for this potential distribution from the Pool. 

 

Revaluation of Land 

 

Operational Land 

Each year end, Council engages its valuer to undertake a review of the value of its operational land.  

As at 30 June 2013, this revaluation resulted in significant increases in the value of Double Bay car 

park lands and O‟Dea Avenue Depot, the latter based on recent strong sales evidence. 

 

At the same time, 9A Cooper Park Road was transferred from community land to operational land 

in accordance with Woollahra LEP 1995 (Amendment No. 71) which was published on 7 June 2013 

requiring it to be valued at fair value rather than using its Valuer General value.  This also resulted 

in a significant increase in value. 

 

In total, including the revaluation of 9A Cooper Park Road, the value of operational land increased 

from $80,126k to $121,448k. 

 

Community Land 

While Council is not due to undertake a revaluation of its community land until 2016, with the 

receipt of it general land revaluation from the Valuer General it was considered appropriate to bring 

forward the revaluation.  The Committee is reminded that we use the Valuer General‟s valuations to 

value our community land.  A report on the general revaluation was considered by the Corporate & 

Works Committee on 4 March 2013. 
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The revaluation increased land values in the Woollahra LGA by 2.8% overall.  As a result of the 

revaluation, the value of Council‟s Community Land increased by $2,574k or 2.8%, consistent with 

the overall increase in land values across the LGA. 

 

Correction of a Prior Period Error 

 

The Committee‟s attention is drawn to a correction to a prior period error, the details of which are 

disclosed in Note 20 (page 69 of Annexure 1).  During the revaluation of Operational Land and 

Investment Properties at 30 June 2013 it became apparent that there was an incorrect attribution of 

land between operational land and investment properties.  The error relates to the O‟Dea Avenue 

Depot site and the two leased portions at the front of the site.  The correction reduces the value of 

investment properties by $4,650k and increases the value of operational land by $4,185k, a net 

reduction in value of $465k. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The final budget result for the year was a reduction in working funds of $47k, or $94k less than 

forecast in the March Budget Review, resulting in a working funds balance of $2,568k at 30 June.  

The result includes $417k in fair value adjustments that is not recommended for transfer to 

Reserves.  This recommendation is made in light of the transfer of $490k to Reserves from last 

year‟s improved working funds position. 

 

Notwithstanding the reduction in working funds over 2012/13, the $2,568k balance is still above 

Council‟s minimum benchmark figure (arrears of Rates & Charges plus Inventory) of $2,392k. 

 

Council‟s operating result for the year was a surplus of $2,917k with major variances to the forecast 

result and 2011/12 provided in the report. 

 

Council‟s working funds and liquidity both remain satisfactory at year end as does Council‟s overall 

financial position. 

 

The Corporate & Works Committee should note that the 2012/13 Financial Statements have been 

reviewed by Council‟s Audit & Assurance Committee.  A number of minor typographical 

corrections and disclosure improvements resulted, none of which changed the reported results.  

Those changes have been incorporated into the financial statements now presented to the Corporate 

& Works Committee.  The Audit & Assurance Committee resolved to support the staff 

recommendation to the Corporate & Works Committee included in this report. 

 

It has been recommended that the Committee recommend to Council the adoption of its statement 

in relation to the 2012/13 financial statements. 

 

It is also recommended that, in anticipation of receiving the Auditor‟s Reports, that Council set the 

Corporate & Works Committee meeting to be held on Monday 21 October 2013 as the meeting at 

which the 2012/13 Financial Statements will be presented to the public. 

 

 

Don Johnston 

Manager Finance 

 

Gary James 

General Manager 

Stephen Dunshea 

Director Corporate Services 

 
 

Annexures: 
 

1. General Purpose Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 (circulated separately)  
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Item No: R2 Recommendation to Council 

Subject: Acceptance of Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme Funding 

Agreement 

Author: Don Johnston, Manager Finance 

Cathy Edwards-Davis, Manager Engineering Services 

File No: 331.G 2013/14 

Reason for Report: For the Committee to recommend to Council that the Local Infrastructure 

Renewal Scheme Funding Agreement for Streetscape Work be accepted and 

Council's Seal be affixed. 

 

Recommendation: 
 

That 

 

A. The Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme Funding Agreement be accepted and Council‟s 

Seal be affixed. 

 

B. Council borrow $2.1m to fund the following Streetscape Work: 

 Oxford Street Streetscape Work ($295,000) 

 Military Road Watsons Bay Streetscape Work ($400,000) 

 William Street Paddington Streetscape Works ($585,000) 

 Edgecliff Road Woollahra Streetscape Works ($820,000) 

 

C. The General Manager be authorised to accept a loan offer in terms most favourable to 

Council. 

 

 

Background: 

 

In adopting the 2013/14 Delivery Program & Operational Plan Council was advised that two 

applications for funding under Round Two of the Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme (LIRS) had 

been made.  The applications were for: 

 

 $11m for the fitout and construction of the new Double Bay Library; and 

 $2.1m for a program of priority Streetscape Works. 

 

This report relates to the second of these applications.  The first will be dealt with in a separate 

report on the financing of the Kiaora Lands Redevelopment Project also on this business paper. 

 

Proposal: 

 

Council was advised in July 2013 that its application for $2.1m for Streetscape Work under LIRS 

had been successful.  More recently, in August 2013, Council received the LIRS Funding 

Agreement from the Division of Local Government (DLG).  The Agreement must be returned to the 

DLG by 11 October 2013. 

 

As a reminder to the Committee, Round Two of LIRS was for a 3% interest subsidy on the $2.1m 

loan.  Based on an indicative rate received from the Commonwealth Bank of 5.7% (on the 

maximum 10 year term available under LIRS), the effective interest rate for the loan would be 

2.7%.  In dollar terms, the subsidy is for $360,597 (upper limit over the term of the loan) of the 

$683,931 that would be paid at a rate of 5.7%.  This is almost 53% of total interest paid. 
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While the Agreement is quite lengthy, it does not impose any onerous conditions on Council, the 

main terms being: 

 

 Council must use the loan to fund the Project (Streetscape Works in the Retail Areas of 

Woollahra); 

 Council must achieve project commencement within 12 months of the execution of the 

Agreement; 

 Council must use the LIRS Subsidy only for the Approved Purpose; 

 Council must submit Progress Reports and a Final Report as set out in the Agreement; 

 Council agrees that the LIRS Administrator may visit the site of the Project at any reasonable 

time; 

 Council is encouraged to acknowledge the support of LIRS in promotional materials or any 

public statements about the Project; and 

 Council agrees to publicly communicate the outcomes of the Project. 

 

The Funding Agreement is attached as ANNEXURE 1. 

 

The projects included in the 2013/14 Delivery Program & Operational Plan are: 

 

Oxford Street, Paddington $295,000 

 

The proposed works will include paving and kerb & gutter in the sections of Oxford Street which 

currently have concrete footpaths.  This includes the sections between County Avenue to Young 

Street, 180A Oxford Street to 178 Oxford Street and Shadford Street to 142 Oxford Street.  The 

new paving in these areas will match that in the rest of Oxford Street. 

 

Military Road, Watsons Bay $400,000 

 

The proposed works will include new paving and kerb & gutter in the section of Military Road 

where the retail shops are.  This includes the sections between 2 Military Road to 20 Military Road 

and 17 Military Road to 27 Military Road. 

 

William Street, Paddington $575,000 

 

The proposed works include paving and kerb & gutter in the sections of William Street which 

currently have asphalt footpaths.  The works may include some road pavement reconstruction, 

where necessary.  It is proposed that the new paving in these areas will match that which has 

already been used in part of William Street and Oxford Street.  This project will be considered in 

conjunction with an earlier Council resolution which states: 

 

That Woollahra Council’s planners and traffic department staff bring a report to the Urban 

Planning Committee, following consultation with the residents and shopkeepers in William 

Street, Paddington, as soon as possible that considers the following: 

 

· that a 10 kilometre pedestrian and car sharing zone be investigated for William Street, 

Paddington -between Paddington Street and Oxford Street . 

 

Edgecliff Road, Woollahra $820,000 

 

The proposed works include new paving and kerb & gutter in Edgecliff Road, between Bathurst 

Street and Adelaide Street.  The works may include some road pavement reconstruction, where 

necessary. 
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With all of the above projects, there may also be the opportunity to install new street trees and street 

furniture, if appropriate. 

 

Consultation: 

 

These projects were included in the public exhibition of the 2013/14 Delivery Program & 

Operational Plan as was the proposed loan borrowing.  In addition, Council will notify and/or 

consult with the business owners/residents immediately adjacent to the works prior to the 

commencement of construction. 

 

Identification of Income & Expenditure: 
 

The projects funded by the approved LIRS loan subsidy are in the 2013/14 Delivery Program & 

Operational Plan funded by loan borrowings.  The budget anticipates drawing down the borrowings 

in the last quarter of 2013/14 and provides for relevant accrued interest and LIRS Subsidy. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

Council has been successful in gaining LIRS subsidisation for a $2.1m loan for Streetscape Works.  

The LIRS Funding Agreement between Council and the DLG imposes no onerous conditions on 

Council in completing the Approved Project. 

 

The proposed works include: 

 

 Oxford Street Streetscape Work ($295,000) 

 Military Road Watsons Bay Streetscape Work ($400,000) 

 William Street Paddington Streetscape Works ($585,000) 

 Edgecliff Road Woollahra Streetscape Works ($820,000) 

 

It is recommended that the Funding Agreement be accepted by Council and the Seal affixed.  It is 

also recommended that Council resolve to borrow the $2.1m approved loan and that the General 

Manager be authorised to accept a loan offer in terms most advantageous to Council. 

 

 

 

Don Johnston, 

Manager Finance 

 

 

 

Cathy Edwards-Davis, 

Manager Engineering Services 

Stephen Dunshea, 

Director Corporate Services 

 

 

 

Annexures: 

 

1. LIRS Funding Agreement for Streetscape Works in the Retail Areas of Woollahra 
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Item No: R3 Recommendation to Council 

Subject: Double Bay Business Partnership/Chamber of Commerce - Terms for 

Mid-Stream Reporting 

Author: P Kauter, Executive Planner 

File No: 1222.G 

Reason for Report: This report responds to the terms of an earlier Council resolution to provide 

funding to the Double Bay Business Partnership/Chamber of Commerce 

 

Recommendation: 
 

That, in relation to the funding to be provided to the Double Bay Business Partnership/Chamber of 

Commerce in accordance with the resolution of the Council on 26/8/13, the amount of funding to be 

withheld pending a mid-stream report as referred to in part C.ii. of that resolution be reduced from 

50% to 20%. 

 

 

 

Background: 

 

On 26/8/13 the Council considered a funding submission from the Double Bay Business 

Partnership/Chamber of Commerce (the Partnership) and resolved as follows: 

 

A. That the Council agree to provide funding to the Double Bay Partnership for the 2013/2014 

financial year of an amount not exceeding $160,000 (excluding GST) for the purpose of 

undertaking the activities set out in its funding submission, Double Bay Chamber of 

Commerce Annual Business Plan 2013-2014 (Funding Submission). 

B. That the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which forms Annexure B of this report be 

approved and the Mayor and General Manager be authorised to enter into the MOU on 

Council’s behalf. 

C. That a Grant Agreement be entered into between Council and the Double Bay Partnership 

which sets out the terms under which the funding referred to in Part A above is provided.  The 

Mayor and General Manager be authorised to enter into the Grant Agreement on behalf of 

Council. The Grant Agreement is to include, but not be limited to:  

i. performance indicators based on the aims of the Focus Areas as referred to in the 

Funding Submission 

ii. a condition that 50% of the total funding be withheld pending the submission of a 

satisfactory mid-stream report on the Partnership’s operations and refinement of the 

Double Bay Chamber of Commerce activity program for the year. 

D. A report be submitted to the Corporate and Works Committee on the merits of increasing 

the amount withheld in Part C. ii from 20% to 50% and the likely effect this would have on 

the proposed activities planned by the Double Bay Partnership. (emphasis added) 

 

This report responds to item D of the above resolution. 

 

The above resolution followed a report to the Corporate & Works Committee on 19/8/13, see 

Annexure A. As discussed in part 6 of that report it was considered that, if the Council was to agree 

to fund the Partnership, the terms under which funding is provided needed to be clearly stated and 

agreed by the parties. For this purpose a grant agreement was considered necessary. Also, that the 

grant agreement should include, among other things, provision that 20% of the total funding be 

withheld pending the submission of a satisfactory mid-stream report on the Partnership‟s 

operations. 
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Part C. of the Council‟s earlier resolution (see above) relates to the grant agreement. In relation to 

the amount of funding to be withheld pending a mid-stream report, Part C.ii. of the resolution 

requires that 50% of the total funding be withheld.  

 

Part D of the Council‟s resolution requires a further report on the merits of increasing the amount of 

funding to be withheld from the 20% referred to in the report to the Corporate & Works Committee 

and the 50% referred to in in Part C.ii. 

 

Proposal: 

 

The main purpose of withholding a portion of the funding is to allow the Partnership to provide us 

with:  

 

 an update on how it has used the allocated funding 

 a projection to completion for activities as contained in its annual business plan   

 

It therefore is a form of safeguard that allows a degree of diligence to be applied to the use of public 

funds. It requires the Partnership to account for the way it is using the funding. Also, it allows the 

Partnership to refine its activity program for the year.  

 

The amount of funding to be withheld is somewhat arbitrary. However, it should provide sufficient 

incentive for the Partnership to properly account for its use of public funds and at the same time not 

unreasonably affect it from undertaking its planned activities.  

 

The Partnership provided a response to part D of the Council‟s resolution. This was by way of an 

email dated 30/8/13 from its Chairman, Greg Solomon to our Director – Planning & Development, 

Allan Coker in the following terms: 

 

Dear Allan,  

 

In response to your request for my comments to the Councils suggested change to Part D of 

the resolution for funding of the Double Bay Chamber Of Commerce budget for  2013/14, I 

would reply by saying that the withholding of 50% of the allocated budget is completely 

unworkable, uncommercial and in my opinion unacceptable.   

 

For the Chamber to implement the budget as presented, we need to be able to commit to a 

variety of expenses well in advance. 

 

The impact on our day to day cash flow by having access to only 50% of our funding, until 

further Council approval is sought, means we are not in a position to commit into the future 

with some of our initiatives , which is unworkable. 

 

The planned Street Fair on the 3rd November, for example,  will alone require a forward 

commitment of some $55,000, meaning we will be forced to put a number of the other ini on 

hold, pending further approval from Council, this I would suggest is unnecessary and makes 

any forward planning extremely difficult, if not impossible and is an ill concived burden to 

place on the Chamber Board. 

 

Allan, as you are aware the budget is being continually worked on and is discussed and 

refined at every Chamber board meeting, (of which yourself and two councillors are usually 

present).  

 

I would suggest that the checks and balances that already exist are a satisfactory protection 

for Council, and that the already agreed to 20% withhold, is sufficient. 
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I await you earliest reply. 

 

Regards, 

 

Greg 

 

Greg Solomon 

Chairman  

Double Bay Chamber Of Commerce  

 

It is apparent that the Partnership, while accepting that some funding will be withheld, has an issue 

with the amount of funding to be withheld. Based on the Partnership‟s response, withholding 50% 

of the funding would jeopardise its planned activities (its planned activities are contained in its 

annual business plan which was previously considered by Council and which was the basis upon 

which the decision to provide funding was made). This was not the intention and would be an 

unexpected and inappropriate consequence.  

 

The Partnership should be allowed sufficient flexibility over the use of the allocated funding to 

enable it to undertake the activities envisaged by its annual business plan. Withholding 50% of the 

funding until mid-way through the funding period does not take into account the likelihood that the 

Partnership, in order to carry out its scheduled activities, may need to use the majority of the total 

funds during the early part of the funding period.  

 

The timing for the transfer of funds is also affected due to the funding period being the 2013/2014 

financial year whereas it is unlikely that any funding will actually be received by the Partnership 

before the end of the 1
st
 quarter. 

 

It should also be noted that in a previous grant agreement between the Council and Paddington 

Business Partnership a similar condition was included which provided for 16% (i.e. total funding 

$30,000, amount withheld $5,000) of the total funding to be withheld pending a mid-stream report.  

 

Conclusion: 

 

It is considered that part C.ii. of the Council‟s resolution of 26/8/13, to withhold 50% of the total 

funding pending the submission of a mid-stream report, will have unexpected and unreasonable 

impacts on the ability of the Partnership to carry out the activities contained in its annual business 

plan.  

 

Therefore, it is recommended that the amount of funding to be withheld be reduced from 50% to 

20%. This means that the Partnership will still need to provide a mid-stream report and thereby 

account for its use of funding. At the same time it will allow the Partnership to carry out its 

activities as envisaged by its annual business plan. 

 

 

 

Peter Kauter 

Executive Planner 

Allan Coker 

Director – Planning & Development 

 

 

Annexures: 

 

A. Corporate & Works Committee report dated 19/8/13. 
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Item No: R4    Recommendation to Council 

Subject: 
Elizabeth Street, Victoria Street & Underwood Street, Paddington - 

Road Infrastructure Works 

Author: Sam Badalati – Project Manager 

File No: Tender No 13/08 

Reason for Report: To recommend to Council the acceptance of a Tender 

 

Recommendation: 

 

A. That Council enter into a Contract with Melhemcorp Pty Ltd for the lump sum of $537,955.05 

excluding GST. 

 

B. That the provisional rate item to reconstruct the full width of footpath on the residential side 

of Victoria Street be considered should sufficient funds be identified during the first quarter 

budget review. 

 

C. That successful and unsuccessful tenderers be advised accordingly. 

 

 

 

Background 

 

Council has included the reconstruction of Elizabeth Street, Victoria Street & Underwood Street, 

Paddington as part of its 2013/14 Capital Works Program. The area of works to be carried out under 

this contract is shown on the aerial photograph below: 

 
Aerial showing Victoria Street and Elizabeth Street 

 
 

 

 

Work 

Area 
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Aerial showing Underwood Street  

 
 

 

Works to be constructed under the Contract comprise road pavement, kerb & gutter, footpath, 

driveways and drainage, and the removal and replacement of street trees as agreed during the 

consultation process.  In 2012 an extensive public consultation process with the residents of 

Elizabeth Street and Underwood Street was undertaken.  This included public meetings, 

presentation of several options and survey of the residents to determine a preferred option.  The 

final design incorporates the views of the majority consensus, which includes the removal of street 

trees planted in the narrow footpaths and the planting of new streets trees in planter islands within 

the non-parking areas of the parking lane.  In Underwood Street there will be changes made to the 

parking arrangements which was reported to the Traffic Committee and adopted by the Community 

& Environment Committee on 9 September 2013. 

 

Invitation to Tender  

 

Tender No. 13/08 for reconstruction work in Elizabeth Street, Victoria Street & Underwood Street, 

Paddington was first advertised in the Tenders section of the Sydney Morning Herald commencing 

on Tuesday 23 July 2013, and in the Wentworth Courier on Wednesday 24 July 2013. 

 

A pre-tender meeting was held on Wednesday 7 August 2013.  All tenderers who had registered 

their interest in the tender were invited to attend.  Questions raised by tenderers were answered and 

a record of the questions and answers was circulated to all tenderers who attended, or who 

registered on Council‟s website.  Tenders for this project closed at 2:30pm on Thursday 15 August 

2013.  Six (6) tenders were received by the closing date and time. No late tenders were received.   

 

  

Work 

Area 
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Tender Assessment  

 

The tender assessment panel comprised Mr David Byatt as the convenor and independent member 

of the tender panel, Mr Yoram Wise as the Commissioning Officer, and Mr Sam Badalati as the 

Project Manager.  Prior to the tender closing date, the tender panel agreed on the following 

weightings that would be used against the advertised selection criteria: 

 

Cost and Pricing       45% 

Demonstrated experience and capacity    25% 

Program and methodology      15% 

Management systems (OHS, quality and environment) 10% 

Duration of works       5% 

 

Council has resolved that a probity adviser should be included during the tender assessment stage 

for high risk, high value or sensitive projects.  This project was deemed not to require a probity 

adviser. 

 

The tenders were first checked for conformance and were all accepted by the evaluation panel as 

having met the requirements for further consideration 

 

The tender prices were then ranked excluding any provisional amount.  Provisional amounts apply 

where the final cost cannot be determined. 

 

All figures in the tables are net of GST: 

 
 

TENDERER 

 
LUMP SUM 

TENDER PRICE 

 

TIME 

(Weeks) 

Melhemcorp Pty Ltd $537,955.05 8 

Stateline Asphalt Pty Ltd $692,123 21 

Subakette Pty Ltd $608,157 12 

North Shore Paving Pty Ltd $877,237.20 18 

Kodi Civil Engineering $822,475.63 20 

Performance Concrete Pty Ltd $1,072,692.74 28 
 

 

The tender documents were then assessed in detail, including the responses to the qualitative 

criteria.  Lump sum prices were scored relative to the lowest price.  The tenders were scored on 

each item of the qualitative criteria, lump sum prices and price components to achieve a total score 

out of 100.  Tenderers were then ranked in accordance with their scores. 
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Melhemcorp Pty Ltd 20.31 15 7.50 5 47.81 45 92.81 

Stateline Asphalt Pty Ltd 18.75 15 6.88 1.90 42.53 34.98 77.51 
Subakette Pty Ltd 18.75 3.75 6.88 3.33 32.71 39.81 72.52 
North Shore Paving Pty Ltd 21.88 5.00 9.38 2.22 38.48 27.60 66.08 

Kodi Civil Engineering 21.88 0.00 8.13 2.0 32.01 29.43 61.44 

Performance Concrete Pty Ltd 14.84 7.50 5.00 1.43 28.77 22.57 51.34 

 
Explanatory notes: 

1. Cost and Pricing: Tenderers provided information on estimated quantities and rates that make up the lump sum 

price, with a weighting of 45%. The lowest tender price received the highest score, with all other prices ranked 

accordingly using the formula (lowest price/each price)x 45). 

2. Experience and capacity: Each tender was scored on scope and complexity of past civil experience, particularly 

for this type of project where drainage and site access are significant issues.   

3. Program & Methodology: Information was requested on each tenderer‟s approach to the project program and 

construction methodology to check the tenderer‟s ability to meet the stated works duration. 

4. Management Systems: Assessment of Quality, Environment controls and OH & S, scored according to 

comprehensiveness of documentation and evidence of it being applied to past projects. The highest scores were 

allocated for systems with independent accreditation. 

5. Duration of Works: The shortest duration of 8 weeks received the maximum score, with others ranked accordingly 

using the formula (shortest duration in weeks/each duration in weeks) x 5. 

6. Zero score is given when no information is provided. 

 

Comment 

 

The two highest scoring tenders are Melhemcorp Pty Ltd and Stateline Asphalt Pty Ltd.  Both 

tenderers are known to Council, having carried out works in the Municipality. 

 

Provisional Amounts 

 

It is normal practice to allow tenderers to submit provisional rates for tasks or activities that could 

possibly apply, or where it is not practical to determine the quantity required. For such items 

provisional rates are sought from the tenderer and these are used only if applicable.   

 

There is approximately 254 square metres of asphalt footpath in Victoria Street where Ausgrid has 

completed works and left patched areas, which need to be restored.  The lump prices submitted by 

the tenderers include an amount to restore these patched areas in asphalt. 

 

We asked tenderers to provide a provisional sum item amount to restore the entire area of footpath 

on the residential side of Victoria Street using “Paddington Mix” concrete, which may be 

considered if there is sufficient budget available. 

 

The table below shows the probable total cost by including provisional items from the two highest 

scoring tenderers 
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 Price for “Paddington Mix” Concrete Footpath 

Melhemcorp Pty ltd $33,020 

Stateline Asphalt Pty Ltd $24,136 

Total Price Melhemcorp Pty ltd $570,975.05 

Total Price Asphalt Pty Ltd $692,043.00 

 

As can be seen Melhemcorp‟s pricing advantage is maintained if the provisional item is included. 

 

1.  Melhemcorp 

 

Melhemcorp Pty Ltd is a small civil engineering and building construction company.  The company 

has a strong background in the design and construction of civil and building projects.  The 

company‟s director is a qualified civil/structural engineer who is hands on, being directly involved 

on site with all their projects providing proper control of the worksite and good quality control of 

the works. Melhemcorp is committed to safety and quality in all of their projects. 

Melhemcorp Pty Ltd have completed a number of projects for Council including the recently 

completed works at Hargrave Street, Paddington and Quarry Street car-park, Paddington.  They 

have also carried out the construction of the roundabouts at the intersections of Bellevue Road and 

Bulkara Road and Bellevue Road and Fairweather Street, Bellevue Hill. 

 

Melhemcorp Pty Ltd is the highest scoring tenderer and also has shortest time frame to complete the 

work (8 weeks).  Melhemcorp Pty Ltd has demonstrated that they are a very capable contractor, 

completing projects they have been awarded on time, on budget and they have demonstrated good 

communication and interaction with the residents around the work sites. The most recent project 

they have completed is the roundabout and drainage work at the intersection of Glenmore Road, 

Cascade Street and Hampden Street, Paddington - a reasonably tricky construction due to the traffic 

conditions.  

 

2.  Stateline Asphalt Pty Ltd 

 

Stateline Asphalt Pty Ltd is the second highest scoring tenderer and their time frame to complete the 

work is twenty-one (21 weeks).  Stateline Asphalt has recently completed various footpath and 

roadworks under the Minor Contractor Works in the Municipality demonstrating that they are a 

capable contractor.  Stateline Asphalt‟s price, and time were higher than Melhemcorp Pty Ltd. 

 

Tender Assessment Panel Opinion 

 

Melhemcorp Pty Ltd achieved the highest overall score and has demonstrated that they are a very 

capable contractor, completing projects they have been awarded on budget and time and they have  

demonstrated good communication and interaction with the residents around the work sites. 

 

The tender panel agreed that Melhemcorp Pty Ltd provides the best value to Council and 

recommends they be appointed to carry out the work. 

 

Identification of Income and Expenditure: 

 

All figures in this report exclude GST.  The preferred tenderer‟s lump sum price for this project is 

$537,955.05.  In addition, a contingency amount of approximately $20,000 should be allowed for 

potential provisional items and variation claims and $5000 for project management.  The total 

funding required for this project is estimated to be $562,955.05.  A total budget of $530,000 is 

available for this project.  The shortfall can be funded from the infrastructure levy reserve and 

reported in the next quarterly budget review. 
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If Council wish to include the provisional amount item to reconstruct the entire path on the 

residential side of Victoria Street, an additional $35,000 would be required.  This can be assessed 

during construction, after the first quarter budget review to identify if sufficient savings have been 

made, which would allow for the provisional items to be included. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

A. That Council enter into a Contract with Melhemcorp Pty Ltd for the lump sum of $537,955.05 

excluding GST. 

 

B. That the provisional rate item to reconstruct the full width of footpath on the residential side 

of Victoria Street be considered should sufficient funds be identified during the first quarter 

budget review. 

 

C. That successful and unsuccessful tenderers be advised accordingly. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sam Badalati   Jake Matuzic     Tom O‟Hanlon 

Project Manager   Manager Capital Projects   Director Technical Services 
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Item No: R5 Recommendation to Council 

Subject: Kiaora Lands Development 

Author: Don Johnston – Manager Finance 

Stephen Dunshea - Director Corporate Services 

File No: 1209.G Part 3 

Reason for Report: To present the Corporate & Works Committee with revised financial 

forecasts for the Kiaora Lands Development Project and to advise the 

outcome of Council‟s application under the Local Infrastructure Renewal 

Scheme for construction and fit-out of the new Double Bay Library as part 

of Stage 2 of the Development.  

 

Recommendation:  
 

THAT Council: 

 

A. Receive and note the revised financial forecasts for the Kiaora Lands Development Project 

presented as Annexure 2 to this report. 

 

B. Note the Division of Local Government‟s decision to offer part funding under the Local 

Infrastructure Renewal Scheme Round Two for the internal fit-out portion of the new Double 

Bay Library project.  

 

C. Accept the funding offer under the Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme for fit-out of the 

new Double Bay Library, affix the Council‟s Seal to the Funding Agreement provided as 

Annexure 1 and authorise the General Manager to accept a loan offer in terms most 

favourable to Council. 

 

D. Adopt the recommended project financing strategy for the capital cost of the Kiaora Lands 

Development as presented in the report.  

 

E. Note the additional transfer from the Property Reserve referred to in the project financing 

strategy as a provision for initial set-up costs associated with the development.   

 

F. Establish a Kiaora Land Reserve as an ongoing funding strategy for capital renewal of the 

development.  

 

G. Receive further updates on the financing strategy in conjunction with the quarterly progress 

reports on implementation of the commercial and retail leasing strategy. 

 

 

 

Background: 

 

The Corporate & Works Committee received a detailed report in April 2013 presenting the 

commercial terms of the Public Private Partnership arrangement with Woolworths Ltd for the 

Kiaora Lands Development Project.   Included in the April 2013 report were the most recent 

financial forecasts for the development which showed, in summary: 

 

 the commercial development providing significant surpluses from the first full year of 

operation; 

 the commercial development surpluses are sufficient to fund building a new state-of-the-art 

Library and the additional costs of its operation; 
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 setting aside the total surpluses in Reserve will provide sufficient funding for ongoing capital 

expenditure requirements in years 8 and 9; 

 in year 31, the first year of the project being debt free, a surplus in excess of $21m 

 

The April report noted that the financial forecasts are the subject of on-going review as construction 

of the development progresses.   With construction of Stage 1 of the development now well 

underway, it is timely that Council review the most recent financial forecasts having regards to: 

 

 The outcome of Council‟s application for a loan subsidy under the Local Infrastructure 

Renewal Scheme (LIRS) for borrowings associated with the construction and fit-out of the 

new Double Bay Library – a component of Stage 2 of the Kiaora Lands Development. 

 Progress to date on the implementation of the retail and commercial leasing strategy. 

 

This report provides the Corporate & Works Committee with the most recent financial forecasts for 

the Kiaora Lands Development and recommends that Council accept the loan subsidy offer under 

the Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme for borrowings associated with the fit-out of the new 

Double Bay Library. 

 

Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme: 
 

In presenting the 2013/14 Budget Strategy report in December 2012, the Corporate & Works 

Committee was advised that work had commenced on an application to the Division of Local 

Government under Round Two of the Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme (LIRS) for the new 

Double Bay Library.   The LIRS provides for a 3% interest rate subsidy for borrowings taken out by 

councils for legitimate infrastructure backlog works.   The maximum term of a loan to be subsidised 

under the scheme is 10 years.  The program is designed to promote the use of debt to accelerate 

investment in infrastructure backlogs.  Investment in community use facilities, such as council 

libraries, was eligible for funding consideration under the scheme guidelines. 

 

Council‟s LIRS application for the Double Bay Library was for a total project value of $11 million, 

comprising: 

 

Library Design and fit-out:      $5.7 m  

Base Library building construction costs:    $5.3 m  

Total Library Project Cost:    $11.0 m 

 

By way of letter dated 26 July 2013, Council has been advised that whilst the LIRS Assessment 

Panel did not deem Council‟s application to be fully eligible for funding as it involves a Public 

Private Partnership arrangement for construction of the library, a decision was made to offer part 

funding under the LIRS for the library fit-out portion of the project.   Therefore the offer received is 

for a 3% interest rate subsidy on a total loan of $5,624,000.     

 

With Council‟s application based on an indicative 5.69% interest rate for the proposed loan over 10 

years, the total subsidy over the term of the loan amounts to $978,845 (upper limit over the term of 

the loan), thus reducing the effective interest rate to 2.69%.   The subsidy represents approximately 

53% of total interest to be paid.   Council has now received a formal LIRS Funding Agreement 

from the Division of Local Government (DLG).  The Agreement must be returned to the DLG by 

11 October 2013. 

 

While the Agreement is quite lengthy, it does not impose any onerous conditions on Council, the 

main terms being: 
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 Council must use the loan to fund the Project (New Double Bay Library); 

 Council must achieve project commencement within 12 months of the execution of the 

Agreement (noting that there are provisions in the agreement to extend this timeframe subject 

to demonstrating due cause for any delay);  

 Council must use the LIRS Subsidy only for the Approved Purpose; 

 Council must submit Progress Reports and a Final Report as set out in the Agreement; 

 Council agrees that the LIRS Administrator may visit the site of the Project at any reasonable 

time; 

 Council is encouraged to acknowledge the support of LIRS in promotional materials or any 

public statements about the Project; and 

 Council agrees to publicly communicate the outcomes of the Project. 

 

The Funding Agreement is attached as Annexure 1. 

 

It is recommended that the Funding Agreement be accepted by Council and the Council Seal 

affixed.  It is also recommended that Council proceed to borrow the $5.624 million over ten (10) 

years in accordance with the terms of the Funding Agreement for fit-out of the new Double Bay 

Library and authorise the General Manager to accept a loan offer in terms most favourable to 

Council.  

 

Financial modelling for the Kiaora Lands Development presented to the Corporate & Works 

Committee in April 2013 was based on the LIRS application for $11 million in subsidised 

borrowings over ten (10) years.    Given the partial approval of Council‟s LIRS application, the 

revised financial forecasts presented in this report model the balance of borrowings proposed for the 

Library under the LIRS application now over a twenty year period.      

 

In addition, the revised forecasts also propose additional borrowing attributable to the library for a 

component of the land acquisition costs for the New South Head Road site from Woolworths.   This 

financing strategy then enables a provision to be made in the estimates for an initial transfer from 

the property reserve to fund any initial set-up costs that may arise from the implementation of the 

commercial & retail leasing strategy and in the lead up to the centre opening. 

 

Further information regarding this revised financing strategy for the Library is presented below as 

part of the discussion of the updated financial projections and overall project financing strategy for 

the Kiaora Lands Development. 

 

Kiaora Lands Development – Updated Financial Projections: 

 

At the time of presenting the financial forecasts for Kiaora Lands to the Corporate & Works 

Committee in April 2013, Council had only recently resolved on 25 March 2013 to enter into a 

contract with Rook Partners for the development and implementation of a commercial and retail 

leasing strategy for the significant areas of commercial/office and specialty retail space which will 

be managed directly by Council. 

  

Since that time, Council has received and noted the Commercial and Retail Leasing Strategy for the 

Kiaora Lands Development and authorised the General Manager to execute leases for commercial 

and retail spaces at Kiaora Lands that derive from the strategy and the work of Rook Partners.   As 

resolved by Council, the content of the Strategy remains confidential under Section 10A (2) (c) until 

all negotiations for leasing of Kiaora Lands are concluded, as the strategy includes information that 

would, if disclosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the council is 

conducting (or proposes to conduct) business. 

In considering the Commercial & Retail Leasing Strategy Council also resolved to receive quarterly 

progress reports on implementation of the strategy. 
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While it is important that the confidentiality provision remains in place until all leasing negotiations 

are completed, it is equally important that Council be kept informed of the impact that 

implementation of the leasing strategy has on the financial forecasts for the overall Kiaora Lands 

development. 

 

Provided as Annexure 2 to this report is a high level summary of the most recent financial forecasts 

for the Kiaora Land Development which includes the following adjustments to the previous 

forecasts presented to the Corporate & Works Committee in April 2013: 

 

 Acceptance of the LIRS loan subsidy for fit-out of the new Double Bay Library, resulting in 

provision being made in the forecasts for repayments on a $5.624 million loan over ten (10) 

years at an estimated 5.69% interest rate. 

 The inclusion of LIRS revenue over the same ten (10) year period representing the 3% interest 

rate subsidy on the $5.624 million loan. 

 Revised rental projections having regards to work to date on implementation of the 

commercial and retail leasing strategy. 

 Initial transfers from the property reserve as provisions for initial set-up costs that may arising 

during the implementation of the commercial & retail leasing strategy. 

 Subsequent reimbursement of these initial set-up cost provisions back to the property reserve 

from projected future years‟ surpluses from the development. 

 Provision for repayments on a $8.0 million loan over twenty (20) years for the new Library, 

representing the balance of the proposed $11 million loan for the construction of the Library 

which was not approved in full under the LIRS application, and $2.624m for a proportion of 

the estimated value of the New South Head Road site land acquisition from Woolworths. 

 Establishment of a Kiaora Lands Reserve and transferring sufficient funds from future years‟ 

surpluses to cover ongoing capital expenditure requirements identified in the original CBRE 

modelling. 

 Identifying the potential „dividend‟ to Council from the development. 

 

As referred to above, the updated financial projections propose additional borrowings which 

recognise the full cost of the new Double Bay Library.  If the Library were to be built on another 

site there would be land acquisition costs in addition to construction and fit-out costs.  Having 

reviewed the financial forecasts, it is considered appropriate that this „full cost‟ of the new Library 

be recognised even though the land acquisition component forms part of the overall cost of the 

Kiaora Lands Development.   

 

Using floor space as a guide, the full cost of the Library has been estimated to be: 

 

Library Design and fit-out: $5.7m 

Base Library building construction costs: $5.3m 

Land acquisition: $6.4m 

 $17.4m 

 

In the context of the estimated full cost of the Library of $17.4m, the updated financial projections 

now include borrowings of $13.6m with the $3.8m balance coming from the property reserve.  The 

long term nature of the project certainly supports the use of borrowings as a source of funding for 

the new Library. 

 

Draft Project Financing Strategy – April 2013: 

 

The April 2013 report to the Corporate & Works Committee presented a draft financing strategy for 

Kiaora Lands Development project.  This April report noted that the estimated total project cost for 

the project is: 
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Project Costs: 

Stage 1 - fixed project cost: $58.25m (Excl. Council land value) 

Stage 2 - fixed project cost: $35.5m  

Library Fit-out $5.7m  

ESD Initiatives $1.5m  

Other Preliminaries $0.6m  

Total Project Cost $101.55m  

 

The draft financing strategy presented in the April 2013 report was as follows: 

 

Project Funding:   

Woolworths Borrowings: ($76.75m)  

Library Borrowings: ($11.0m)  

State Library Grant ($0.25m)  

S94 Carparking ($1.4m)  

E&IR Levy  ($0.4m)  

2012/13 Budget allocation ($0.5m)  

Property Reserve ($11.25m)  

Total Funding ($101.55m)  

 

In presenting this draft financing strategy to the Committee in April it was noted that it would be the 

subject of further review in the context of Council‟s preparation of its 2013/14 budget and updated 

long term financial plan.  The basis of reviewing the draft financing strategy now also needs to 

include progress of implementation of the commercial and retail leasing strategy and the partial 

approval of Council‟s LIRS application. 

 

Updated Project Financing Strategy – September 2013: 

 

The updated financial projections presented in Annexure 1 to this report are based on the following 

revised project funding strategy: 

 

Project Funding:   

Woolworths Borrowings: ($76.75m)  

Library Borrowings 

   – Fit-out 

   – Construction & Land) 

 

($5.624m) 

($8.0m) 

 

(LIRS Subsidy Loan) 

State Library Grant ($0.2m)  

S94 Carparking ($1.4m)  

E&IR Levy  ($0.4m)  

2012/13 Budget allocation ($0.5m) (B/fwd to 2013/14)  

Property Reserve ($8.676m)  

Total Funding ($101.55m)  

 

This revised funding strategy now has regard to the full cost of the new Double Bay Library, 

including a proportion of land acquisition costs, and also provides some funding flexibility to 

support any initial set-up costs that may arise in the lead up to the centre opening and from the 

ongoing implementation of the commercial and retail leasing strategy.    

 

This provision for set-up costs appears in the revised financial forecasts presented as Annexure 1 as 

a transfer from the Property Reserve in years 14/15 & 15/16 and is achieved through a reduction in 

Property Reserve funding in the project financing strategy from the $11.25m presented in the draft 

strategy in April, to the $8.676m shown above in the September 2013 project financing strategy.  

Following these transfers from the property reserve, the reserve balance is forecast to be $1.4m. 
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As can be seen from Annexure 1, even with the additional borrowings the project remains 

sufficiently revenue positive to allow reserves to be set aside for ongoing capital renewal 

requirements and to reimburse the property reserve for the initial transfers to support initial set-up 

costs.  Further in regard to the additional borrowings, Council‟s debt service ratio is forecast to peak 

at 10.5%, which is well within acceptable benchmarks. 

 

Following the repayment of the LIRS loan and reimbursement of the property reserve in 2024/25, 

the development starts generating significant potential „dividends‟ to Council, the use of which can 

be considered at that time in conjunction with normal budget deliberations. 

 

Additional Budgetary Impacts 

 

Arising from the Kiaora Lands Development and relocation of the Library, financial projections 

recognise additional operating costs and outgoings for the Library and that Council‟s Budget 

currently includes income from the Kiaora Lands Car Park.   

 

Like all other service level increases, these budgetary impacts will need to be considered in the 

context of Council‟s annual budget.  It may be that, given the benefits to the development of having 

a Library to draw people to it that some of the future „dividends‟ be applied to these additional 

costs. 

 

Conclusion 

 

This report provides the Corporate & Works Committee with revised financial forecasts for the 

Kiaora Lands Development and seeks Council‟s adoption of an updated project financing strategy 

for the capital cost of the development. 

 

The report also advises the outcome of Council‟s application for a loan subsidy under Round Two 

of the Local Infrastructure Renewal Scheme for the new Double Bay Library and recommends 

Council accept the loan subsidy offer under the LIRS for borrowings of $5.624m associated with 

the fit-out of the Library. 

 

The report also recommends the establishment of a Kiaora Lands Reserve as an ongoing funding 

strategy for capital renewal of the development.  

 

As can be seen from the revised financial forecasts presented as Annexure 2, the long term benefits 

of the Kiaora Lands Development to Council and the Woollahra community cannot be overstated.    

This is best demonstrated through the forecast „Cumulative Dividend to Council‟ line in the 

financial model that shows estimated dividends to Council from the total development over the 

initial 30 year capital funding period exceeding $150 million.   

 

This projected result is achieved after having funded a new state of the art community facility in the 

new Double Bay Library and having made provision in the long term estimates for on-going capital 

renewal of the centre through the establishment of the Kiaora Lands Reserve.  

 

Don Johnston 

Manager Finance 

 

 

Stephen Dunshea 

Director Corporate Services 

 

Gary James 

General Manager 
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Political Donations – matters to be considered by Councillors at Meetings 

 
 

 

Action 
Declare a significant non-pecuniary conflict of 

interest, absent yourself from the meeting and take 
no further part in the debate or vote on the matter 

(Code of Conduct Cl 4.16b) 

Action 

Consider appropriate action required. 
This could include limiting involvement by: 

1. participating in discussion but not in decision making (vote), 
2. participating in decision making (vote) but not in the discussion 

3. not participating in the discussion or decision making (vote) 
4. removing the source of the conflict 

Do you believe the political 
contribution creates a significant 
non-pecuniary conflict of interest 

for you? 

(Code of Conduct Cl 4.23) 

Action 
Declare a significant non-

pecuniary conflict of interest, 
absent yourself from the meeting 

and take no further part in the 
debate or vote on the matter  

(Code of Conduct Cl 4.16(5) 

Staff to record decision process 
(motions/amendments) and Division of votes for the 
determinative resolution or recommendation in the 

meeting minutes. 

Matter before Committee or  

Council Meeting 

Did the applicant, owner (if not 
the applicant) or someone close 

to the applicant make a 
donation in excess of $1,000 
that directly benefited your 

election campaign?  
(Code of Conduct Cl 4.21) 

Is the matter before the meeting 

a Planning Matter? 

Action 

Participate in debate and vote on the matter 

Did the applicant or someone 
close to the applicant make a 
donation less than $1,000 that 
directly benefited your election 

campaign? 

(Code of Conduct Cl 4.2) 

Staff to record decision process 
(motions/amendments) and Division of votes for the 
determinative resolution or recommendation in the 

meeting minutes. 

No 

No No 

No 

Yes 

Yes Yes 

Yes 

Yes 
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